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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Philip Reed, Chair of the Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee.  And I'm pleased to have so many of you

          5  here -- I guess, I must be speaking to the media --

          6  today to join us.

          7                 This afternoon we will be exploring

          8  three matters. First, or in the process, we will be

          9  voting on whether to override the Mayor's recent

         10  veto of Intro. 257-A, a local law to restrict the

         11  use of mobile phones in a place of public

         12  performance.

         13                 Also, we will vote on Resolution 656,

         14  a resolution calling upon the United States Congress

         15  not to preempt local predatory lending laws.

         16                 And finally, we will also be

         17  considering Intro. 298, a local law to ban the sale

         18  of toy guns in New York City. We will be taking

         19  testimony only on this last matter.

         20                 Before we begin, I want to recognize

         21  my colleagues and I want to thank them for being

         22  here, and as I think they're familiar with now when

         23  we have a full quorum of the Consumer Affairs

         24  Committee, we will, as appropriate, try to get these

         25  votes out of the way, because I know that people
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          2  have a lot of things on their calendar, and I

          3  appreciate your indulging me in terms of when we

          4  started.

          5                 So to my left we have Council Member

          6  Joe Addabbo from Queens, and John Liu, also from

          7  Queens.  Council Member Charles Barron from

          8  Brooklyn, and one of the prime sponsors and the

          9  author of the bill on toy guns, David Weprin from

         10  Queens on my right, and immediately to my left is

         11  his co-prime sponsor on this bill, Council Member Al

         12  Vann from Brooklyn, and Oliver Koppell, last but not

         13  least, from the Bronx.  Debra Brown is our Counsel

         14  to the Committee and has done a lot of work on all

         15  of these bills, and I want to take a chance to thank

         16  her.

         17                 Just in terms of the override, our

         18  order of business on the override, this is the

         19  Legislation that would prevent the use of cellular

         20  phones during public performances. As the Committee

         21  Members well know, we've held three public hearings

         22  on this matter and heard from a variety of

         23  interested parties.  Our Committee approved the

         24  current version of the bill in November, and the

         25  full Council passed it overwhelmingly on December
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          2  18th.  However, on January 13th the Mayor vetoed

          3  257- A. The corresponding Mayoral message was

          4  presented to the Council on our stated meeting on

          5  January 29th.

          6                 Today the Committee will vote on

          7  whether or not to override that veto.

          8                 For procedural clarity today, we will

          9  be voting once on two coupled items.  The first item

         10  is a motion to receive and file M- 411, which is

         11  done for the purpose of completing the record.  A

         12  yes vote to this item will only mean that M- 411 is

         13  accepted into the official record of the Council

         14  proceedings and does not mean agreement with its

         15  contents.

         16                 The second item is the following

         17  substantive motion.  Shall Intro. 257- A pass, the

         18  objection of the Mayor notwithstanding.

         19                 As the Chair, I recommend voting yes

         20  on both coupled items.

         21                 We will also, as I said, be

         22  considering Reso. 656, and I will be waiting until

         23  Council Member Sanders has joined us since this is

         24  his resolution, and we will be simply having a voice

         25  vote on that resolution.  Okay.
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          2                 So there are members of the Council

          3  here today that are not members of the Consumer

          4  Affairs Committee, and I appreciate that they're

          5  here, but just in terms of our procedural business I

          6  wanted to get that clarification made early on.

          7                 Having said that -- thank you.  And I

          8  understand that Council Member Davis from Brooklyn,

          9  a member of our Committee also has joined us.  Thank

         10  you very much.

         11                 We want to get started with testimony

         12  on the toy gun legislation.  And I am in support of

         13  this legislation and will defer my remarks on this

         14  because I know that the co- prime sponsors on this

         15  have remarks that they would like to make.  And so I

         16  would first call on Council Member Vann.

         17                 No, just in terms of opening remarks

         18  on the toy gun bill.  I thought I had made all this

         19  clear, you see the first question out of -- I'm

         20  confusing people so I'll try to be clearer.  We're

         21  going to begin testimony on that, I'm waiting for

         22  one other Council Member, then we're going to start.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yes, you are

         24  clear, Mr. Chairman.  It was I that was unclear.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you very

          3  much for this opportunity and the Members of

          4  Consumer Affairs Committee for allowing Councilman

          5  Weprin and myself this opportunity to present to the

          6  public a very grave concern.

          7                 One of the greatest things that a

          8  Legislature can do is to provide for the safety of

          9  its people.  If this City's Council can take an

         10  action that will save one life, that would be an

         11  action that is worth taking.  If the City Council

         12  can take an action that will heighten the awareness

         13  of the people and of parents in particular about the

         14  dangers involved in toy guns, that would make this

         15  action a worthwhile action.  If the City Council can

         16  take an action that would no longer allow a

         17  criminally- minded person comfort in the commission

         18  of a crime with a toy, knowing that if apprehended

         19  the penalty is less severe this would be an action

         20  worth taking.  If the City Council can take an

         21  action which have the effect of detracting from the

         22  escalating and increasing culture of violence in our

         23  nation, City, and in our communities, then that

         24  would be an action worth taking.  If our City

         25  Council can take an action that will not imperil the
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          2  lives of our law enforcement personnel by having to

          3  make a split- second decision as to whether or not a

          4  firearm is a toy or real, it seems to me that that

          5  would be an action worth taking.

          6                 I submit, Mr. Chairman, and to all

          7  present, that if we were to enact, and I believe

          8  that we will, a ban preventing the sale of toy guns

          9  in New York City, all of the events that I have

         10  described here would be realized.  We would save

         11  lives, we would bring greater awareness to not

         12  buying toy guns for our children, we would heighten

         13  the awareness of the impact of toy guns leading to a

         14  tolerance and indeed an acceptance of real guns, and

         15  when you add to that all of the imagery from the

         16  media, cable TV, movies, the violence, children

         17  think that they can act from what they've seen on

         18  the screen, this becomes a very important piece of

         19  legislation.  One that I hope we will enact in the

         20  City Council for the safety of the people of the

         21  City of New York.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I thank you,

         24  Council Member Vann.

         25                 Council Member Weprin?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes.  Thank

          3  you, Mr. Chairman, Committee Members, and

          4  colleagues.

          5                 Today, I am here to testify on behalf

          6  of Intro. 298, which I'm a co-author with Council

          7  Member Albert Vann, which will seek to ban the sale

          8  of toy guns within the City of New York.

          9                 The questions that immediately arise

         10  are:  Why do we need more legislation?  Shouldn't we

         11  be in the business of regulating the sale of toys?

         12  Haven't we gone far enough in requiring toy

         13  manufacturers to produce these guys in bright

         14  colors, with distinctive logos, that anyone can tell

         15  is toy? Regrettably, the answer is that we need this

         16  legislation to safeguard the lives of our citizens

         17  and prevent further deaths from occurring.

         18                 Just about one month ago on January

         19  2nd, 2003, a 17- year- old boy was shot and killed

         20  as he brandished a toy gun at the head of an

         21  undercover detective.

         22                 Several months before the police

         23  fatally shot a man wielding what turned out to be a

         24  toy gun.

         25                 This past Sunday there was another
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          2  incident involving someone shot and killed with a

          3  toy gun mistaken for a real gun, and it was buried

          4  in the middle of a newspaper, in The Post on Monday,

          5  because it's no longer a big news story; it's

          6  happening all the time.  The manufacturer complied

          7  with all the requirements listed in the previously

          8  mentioned legislation. Tragically, it was not

          9  enough.

         10                 Look at this toy gun.  This is a gun

         11  that was my 11- year- old daughter's water pistol.

         12  It was a brightly colored, blue gun, that I

         13  personally spray painted black, with spray paint

         14  that I bought in a normal hardware store.  Can a

         15  police officer, from a distance, distinguish this

         16  gun from a real gun?

         17            Look.  Imagine yourself to be a police

         18  officer responding to a call for assistance and a

         19  person brandishing this gun.  How did they react?

         20  What are you supposed to do?  If you do as you are

         21  trained to do, you will ask the person to drop the

         22  weapon, and if there's no compliance you may shoot

         23  to protect the people in the area as well as

         24  yourself.

         25                 So is this a real or a toy gun?  This

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  looks remarkably similar to the gun that was used in

          3  the incident on January 3rd, where the 17- year- old

          4  was shot and killed because of a mistaken gun.  This

          5  was a water pistol before I spray painted it.  It

          6  was my daughter's water pistol.  It was purchased at

          7  a local toy store.  The manufacturer complied with

          8  all the requirements as to color and markings, and

          9  in three minutes with a can of black spray paint,

         10  which I will produce.  Bear with me. Sold over the

         11  counter in any hardware store, black spray paint. It

         12  now looks like a realistic gun.

         13                 Too many of our youngsters and adults

         14  have taken the foolish step of intending to

         15  victimize their friends and our neighbors with these

         16  transformed toys, only to become tragic victims of

         17  their own foolishness.

         18                 Responsible and social concerned toy

         19  dealers, such as Toys- R- Us and K- B Toys have

         20  voluntarily decided not to sell toy guns on their

         21  shelves.  Unfortunately, these safety- minded

         22  dealers are in the minority.

         23                 This is not merely an issue dealing

         24  with consumerism.  It is one dealing with public

         25  safety and the deadly potential of these toy guns.
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          2  The legislation that Council Member Vann and I have

          3  drafted is not an issue of overzealous government

          4  intervention.  Whether the gun is real or not, a

          5  death is still taking place and that is a tragedy we

          6  can prevent.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

          9  much, Council Member Weprin.

         10                 We have several panels of people who

         11  want to speak, both for and against this bill.  And

         12  first we're going to hear from the Administration,

         13  and I believe that the three people that are here

         14  are Inspector Steven Silks, and Susan Petito, both

         15  from the police department, and Andrew Eiler, who is

         16  representing the Department of Cultural Affairs.

         17                 Welcome.

         18                 MR. EILER: Consumer Affairs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Consumer Affairs.

         20  I'm sorry. I've got a beef with Cultural Affairs

         21  right now so it's stuck in my head, and that's the

         22  Committee I'm the Chair of, right Consumer Affair.

         23  Okay.  Thank you, Andy.

         24                 In no particular order, please begin.

         25                 INSPECTOR SILKS:  All right.  Good
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          2  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Council.

          3    I am Inspector Steven Silks.  I'm the Commanding

          4  Officer of the Firearms and Tactic Section of the

          5  New York City Police Department.  On behalf of

          6  Commissioner Raymond Keller and Deputy Commissioner

          7  of Training James Fyfe, I'm pleased to be here today

          8  to discuss Intro. 298.

          9                 The Firearms and Tactics Section, as

         10  part of the Police Academy, is the command most

         11  directly responsible for training police officers in

         12  the safe and lawful use of firearms. We are,

         13  therefore, always mindful of the dangers faced by

         14  our police officers as they perform their duties,

         15  and we strive to prepare them for the difficulties

         16  they may encounter.

         17                 The intense training our officer

         18  receive is obviously focused on the dangers

         19  presented by genuine firearms, capable of injuring

         20  our members, members or the public or police

         21  officers responding to calls for help.  However, toy

         22  guns or imitation firearms can also present a

         23  serious challenge to law enforcement, especially

         24  when they're altered to resemble real firearms.  It

         25  is perhaps ironic that as the Police Department has
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          2  concentrated its efforts on removing illegal guns

          3  from our streets, criminals have turned to toy guns,

          4  easily altered by paint or tape, to commit crimes

          5  without fear that they will be charged with criminal

          6  possession of a weapon if caught.

          7                 The most frightening consequence of

          8  the use of toy guns is, obviously, the possibility

          9  that a toy which a child or a teenager might be

         10  playing with could be mistaken either by police or

         11  passersby as a real weapon.  Children have played

         12  games such as cops and robbers and Army for

         13  generations.  But when the guns they wave and point

         14  at each other look real, a special type of danger is

         15  created.

         16                 In 2002, the Police Department's

         17  Firearms Analysis Section recorded 239 recoveries of

         18  toy guns, and 101 recoveries of blank or starters'

         19  pistols.  In 2002, the recoveries were 202 and 88,

         20  respectively.  This data doesn't capture the entire

         21  universe of encounters between police officers and

         22  individuals using toy guns, but it does illustrate

         23  that many look real, and they look real enough to

         24  require seizure and submission to the Firearms and

         25  Analysis Section for ballistics examination.
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          2                 There is another type of potential

          3  harm associated with toy guns.  Criminals sometimes

          4  disguise their weapons by making them look like

          5  toys, such as painting them bright color, in an

          6  attempt to evade detection and fool the observer

          7  into thinking there is no danger.  If all toy guns

          8  were outlawed in New York City, this option might be

          9  less attractive.

         10                 For these reasons, we commend the

         11  Council on the intent behind Intro. No. 298, in its

         12  attempt to ensure that toy guns are unavailable in

         13  New York City.

         14                 Toy guns must, under current law, be

         15  brightly colored or transparent so as to clearly not

         16  resemble an actual firearm.  The bill acknowledges

         17  the ease at which such brightly colored toys might

         18  be converted into realistic looking weapons, and

         19  seeks to prohibit the sale, use or possession of any

         20  toy or imitation firearm, which substantially

         21  duplicates or can reasonably be perceived to be an

         22  actual firearm.  The bill retains the limited

         23  exceptions for specific circumstances, detailed in

         24  the Administrative Code, Section 10- 131, Sub

         25  (g)(2): Possession for sale outside the City;
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          2  theatrical use; non- firing replica antique firearms

          3  and decorative miniatures.

          4                 With respect to the language in the

          5  bill, we have noted some concerns that the Council

          6  may with to consider.

          7                 First, the term "firearm" is not

          8  defined in the bill, or elsewhere in the

          9  Administrative Code, Section 10- 131.  A definition

         10  for firearm is found in Section 10- 301, but that

         11  definition doesn't apply to the chapter in which

         12  Section 10- 131 is located.  The definition in the

         13  Administrative Code is based on the Penal Law,

         14  Section 265, Subdivision (3).  They both define --

         15  excuse me -- they both limit the definition of a

         16  firearm to pistols, revolvers and sawed- off

         17  shotguns.  The Penal Law includes assault weapons.

         18  The definition specifically does not include rifles

         19  and shotguns, which are separately defined.

         20  Therefore, it is suggested that toy rifles and

         21  shotguns would need to be specifically included in

         22  the bill's amendment of Section 10- 131, and a

         23  separate definition of a firearm be created.

         24                 Second, the bill deletes exceptions

         25  for bright colors, et cetera, from Subdivision
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          2  (g)(1), and prohibits -- in quotes, "any toy or

          3  imitation firearm which substantially duplicates or

          4  can reasonably be perceived as an actual firearm." One

          5  could argue that a bright pink plastic revolver

          6  could not reasonably be perceived to be an actual

          7  firearm; and, therefore, defeat the purpose of the

          8  bill.  It is, therefore, suggested that the

          9  prohibition include a toy or imitation firearm which

         10  can be readily altered to resemble an actual

         11  firearm.

         12                 Third, there are instances where the

         13  limitations of firearms are used in a responsible --

         14  excuse me -- where imitation firearms are used in a

         15  responsible and lawful manner which we submit should

         16  be preserved.  For example, imitation firearms are

         17  used in training programs such as martial arts

         18  school, self- defense classes or ROTC programs and

         19  should be excepted.  Similarly, imitation firearms

         20  may be legitimately used by veterans' groups, honor

         21  guards and drill teams.  In addition, a legitimate

         22  business use for imitation firearm, such as for

         23  holster manufacturers, which uses models of firearms

         24  to fit holsters, would be precluded by the bill.

         25                 We would welcome the opportunity to
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          2  work with you and to craft appropriate language,

          3  maintaining the legitimate use of imitation pistols

          4   -- excuse me -- weapons.

          5                 Finally, we are advised that there is

          6  a possibility that this proposal is circumscribed by

          7  federal law. This question has not been resolved by

          8  any court, and we have no opinion as to whether

          9  localities have the legal authority to enact such

         10  laws as the one proposed.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  discuss Intro. 298 with you today, and we look

         13  forward to working with you to improve the safety of

         14  the people of the City of New York.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you,

         17  Inspector.

         18                 Miss Petito.  Thank you.

         19                 Mr. Eiler.

         20                 MR. EILER:  Good afternoon, Chairman

         21  Reed, and Members of the Consumer Affairs Committee.

         22                 I'm Andrew Eiler, Chief Research

         23  Analyst for the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         24  Commissioner Dykstra asked me to thank you for the

         25  opportunity to appear before you to comment on
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          2  Intro. 298.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Andy, I'm sorry.

          4  Can you pull the microphone down, so it's a little

          5  clearer to hear you.

          6                 MR. EILER:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. EILER:  Okay.  To ban the sale of

          9  imitation firearms.

         10                 I'm sorry, I don't have a prepared

         11  statement for you, but we'll send it to you

         12  afterwards.

         13                 Inspector Silks has already

         14  highlighted the interrelated ways that imitation

         15  firearms can threaten public safety.  On the one

         16  hand, by appearing to be firearms they can pose a

         17  direct threat that can provoke a mistaken defensive

         18  reaction.  On the other hand, by making it possible

         19  to disguise a real weapon as a imitation firearm, it

         20  can mislead the police and the public into a false

         21  sense of security when they are, in fact, facing

         22  deadly threats.

         23                 Banning imitation weapons, as this

         24  bill proposes to do, is the sure way to address both

         25  threats at the same time.
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          2                 The Commissioner, therefore, asked me

          3  to express the Department's support for the purpose

          4  of the bill.

          5                 The Department already enforces the

          6  current requirements that imitation firearms be

          7  properly colored to distinguish them from the

          8  genuine article.  As part of that effort, we have

          9  pending four cases involving the offer to sell

         10  various types of imitation firearms, such as paint-

         11  ball guns, cap guns and water guns.  The Department

         12  will enforce the proposed law also.

         13                 While this bill serves a clear

         14  purpose, we are mindful that, as Inspector Silks

         15  pointed out, federal law may pose jurisdictional

         16  complications.  We are willing to work with you on a

         17  question of whether localities can adopt such a ban.

         18                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         19  address Intro. 298.  The Commissioner looks forward

         20  to working with you on this bill to improve public

         21  safety for New Yorkers.

         22                 I would be pleased to answer your

         23  questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

         25  much for your testimony.  And I'm delighted to see
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          2  that on this particular bill that we are in accord

          3  with the Administration, and there are lots of

          4  questions that we're going to take, but I want to

          5  change direction here for a moment since I have a

          6  quorum of our Consumer Affairs Committee, and so I

          7  want to move to our votes on these other matters.

          8                 For clarification, and we've been

          9  joined by Council Member James Sanders, Jr., from

         10  Queens, the principal author of one of our

         11  Resolutions 656, and I want to recommend that if you

         12  want to, Council Member Sanders, that you take a

         13  minute to speak on your resolution.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         15  Chair.  I will be brief.

         16                 As everyone knows, and I thank

         17  everyone for being here, of course, and thank you

         18  for this opportunity, Mr. Chair.

         19                 New York City came up with a

         20  predatory lending bill, which, of course, was

         21  introduced in March of 2002.  It basically says that

         22  the City will not do business with banks that engage

         23  in predatory lending practices.  Predatory lending

         24  mostly effects communities of color, lower- income

         25  people, and the elderly.  These people have been
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          2  preying on these communities for years.

          3                 The predatory lending bill was

          4  unanimously passed by the Consumer Affairs

          5  Committee, September the 4th. Overwhelmingly passed

          6  by the City Council two weeks later.  Sadly vetoed

          7  by the Mayor in October.  The Council overrode the

          8  Mayor's veto in November, and now we have the

          9  strongest law in the nation on this issue.  In fact,

         10  New York has led the way because other cities and

         11  states have been rolling a movement to protect

         12  citizens from predators has occurred, and I'm glad

         13  we have enough police in the audience today because

         14  if the predatory lenders come we may need to call

         15  upon you, sir.

         16                 We have the strongest law in the

         17  nation.  Some people who have been making a lot of

         18  money from predatory lending have tried an end run.

         19  They have gone down to Washington, D.C. They have

         20  tried to find ways to nullify New York and other

         21  states and locality's laws protecting their

         22  citizens.  I am urging the fine Committee to pass a

         23  resolution which says that -- it calls upon our

         24  federal people, our federal officials to fight

         25  against this process to ensure that it not pass.
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          2                 Thank you very much, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.  Thank

          4  you, Council Member Sanders.

          5                 I think that if my recollection

          6  serves me well that everybody sitting at this dais

          7  today was in support of this ground- breaking

          8  legislation that we also felt was fair.  And I think

          9  as was often pointed out, was good for business, and

         10  I think that often times get left out of the

         11  conversation, this is something that the Council was

         12  very proud of having created this legislation that

         13  sort of led the way nationally.  So it's not

         14  surprising to me that, you know, the folks in

         15  opposition to this have tried to go and do an end-

         16  a- round, but I think the American public

         17  understands what it is that we were talking about.

         18                 I want to first just try to make it

         19  simple because it's not difficult, but we've got to

         20  do several votes.  So we will first now -- the

         21  Consumer Affairs Committee will vote by a voice vote

         22  on Council Member Sanders' Resolution 656.  A

         23  resolution calling upon the United States Congress

         24  to respect the authority of the state and elected

         25  officials to protect their constituents from
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          2  predatory home loans.

          3                 Mr. Clerk?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Resolution 656.  All

          5  those in favor say, aye.

          6                 THE QUORUM:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  All those opposed

          8  say, nay.

          9                 The resolution is adopted

         10  unanimously.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         12                 Secondly, we are going to take a

         13  matter of the Mayor's veto, and I'm going to read

         14  the procedural rules.  Again, just so my colleagues

         15  understand, we have two votes.

         16                 For procedural clarity, the first

         17  item is a motion to receive and file, which is M-

         18  411, which is done for the purpose of completing the

         19  record.  A yes vote will only mean that we've

         20  accepted M- 11.

         21                 The second item is the following

         22  substantive motion.  Shall Intro. 257- A pass with

         23  the objection of the Mayor notwithstanding.  So in

         24  other words, a yes vote on the second piece will

         25  mean that we are overriding the Mayor's veto.
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          2                 Have I cleared that up?  Okay.  Thank

          3  you.  In other words, two yes votes is what the

          4  Council Chair is recommending.  I'll make it simpler

          5  that way.  Okay?

          6                 I've been told by my counsel, and,

          7  you know, you never argue with your legal counsel

          8  that we can, in fact, couple those two votes.  Okay?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         10  Chairman, my colleague here, since you asked me to

         11  discuss it with my colleague, I think that he does

         12  want to vote separately on each.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, in your

         14  remarks on that, you can separate your votes, but

         15  I'm calling them both at the same time.  So you can

         16  separate them if you'd like to.  Okay? Thank you.

         17                 Mr. Clerk.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:   Reed?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Barron?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  May I
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          2  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

          5                 Just briefly, I want to commend the

          6  Chair for persisting on this matter, and I find the

          7  objections really frivolous because there's so many

          8  laws -- the argument that we can't enforce this.

          9  There's so many laws that obviously we can't enforce

         10  if people at wholesale violate them.

         11                 I don't suggest that -- I would call

         12  to the attention of the Mayor, that every time I

         13  take an airplane they tell me that smoking in the

         14  lavatories is contrary to federal law.  I don't see

         15  too many people on the plane who could enforce that

         16  while I'm flying from one place to another, and yet,

         17  I think, it's a good idea to remind passengers it's

         18  contrary to federal law.

         19                 Similarly, I think, it's a good idea

         20  to remind people that they are violating the law if

         21  they disturb patrons in a live performance, and so I

         22  want to commend you and take issue with any

         23  objection to this which it's a good thing and I hope

         24  it, in fact, passes the Council as a whole.

         25                 I withdraw my request, and vote yes
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          2  on both parts of the resolution.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Mr. Chair, may I

          6  be excused to explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  On the first

          9  item I do vote yes on receiving the Mayor's message

         10  of a veto.

         11                 On the second item, with respect to

         12  your chairmanship and the work of this fine

         13  Committee, I respectfully vote no.  I think that

         14  there are many behaviors that people conduct

         15  themselves with, and I don't know if we can really

         16  get into the business of passing a law against every

         17  single thing that people should know that they ought

         18  not to do.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         21                 Mr. Clerk?

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sanders?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Yes to both.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Davis?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Permission to
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          2  explain my vote?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Please do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  First, I'd

          5  like to acknowledge the great work of Chairman Reed

          6  in this discussion and this particular issue.  But

          7  as a retired police officer and a person who has had

          8  to respond to many different calls, I find it very

          9  difficult to vote for this particular measure

         10  because it's rude.  It's certainly rude to talk on

         11  the phone, it's inappropriate, you shouldn't do it.

         12  You also shouldn't eat popcorn loudly.  You

         13  shouldn't do a lot of different things, and this

         14  fall in the category of rudeness and not in the

         15  category of illegal.

         16                 So as far as the Mayor, the first

         17  part, I vote yes.

         18                 But with absolute respect to Chairman

         19  Reed, and the fine job that he has done and this

         20  Committee, I must make the separation between

         21  rudeness and illegal.  I vote no.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Mr. Clerk.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  M- 411, following the

         24  Mayor's veto, is adopted by a vote of seven in the

         25  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no
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          2  abstentions.

          3                 And Intro. 257- A is adopted by a

          4  vote of five in the affirmative, two in the

          5  negative, and no abstentions.

          6                 Council Members, please sign the

          7  Committee reports.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

          9  much, Committee Members, and those other members of

         10  the Council who have joined us.

         11                 We want to move back to the subject

         12  of Intro. 257 -- excuse me -- 298, toy guns, and I

         13  know that we have questions.

         14                 Council Member Barron?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you,

         16  Chairman Reed.

         17                 If you may allow me, I just want to

         18  make a quick comment.

         19                 I am livid that the Libertarian Party

         20  would have the nerve, the racist nerve to come into

         21  communities of color, just to be opportunistic, to

         22  get some attention and say that they are going to

         23  give out toy guns to our community, knowing that

         24  these toy guns lead to the death of some of our

         25  children.  You must find other ways to promote your

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  party.  Other ways to promote their organization,

          3  other than complying with death to our children.

          4  And some of us were tempted to say, you know why

          5  don't you go ahead and do it in the white community,

          6  but I don't even think white children should be

          7  treated the way you are treating children.  I think

          8  all children should be protected from anything that

          9  could lead to their death.

         10                 This is not a game for media

         11  attention.  This is something very serious in our

         12  community.  It smacks at racism, and opportunism at

         13  its worse.

         14                 And I'd also like to say that while I

         15  definitely support this measure, the police

         16  department has to show greater restraint.  And I

         17  don't think banning toy guns is the solution to a

         18  very serious problem in the police department, but

         19  it is a step in the right direction to correcting

         20  some behavior.

         21                 So while I support the legislation,

         22  Mr. Chairman, I did want to say to the police

         23  department, we certainly can't go around banning

         24  everything that you shoot us for, like wallets,

         25  candy bars.  So I think the police department needs
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          2  to show a little more restraint because this is wise

          3  banning of an item that we get shot for.  Some other

          4  things we can't ban.

          5                 So, Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to

          6  make that comment and let the Chair move on with the

          7  rest of this hearing.

          8                 Thank you very much, Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         10                 And I will reserve some comments for

         11  later, but the only clarification that I would make

         12  to what you said, Council Member Barron.  It doesn't

         13  smack of racism, it is racist.

         14                 Council Member Davis?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 I just want to ask a question, but in

         18  1994, for the purposes, 1994, a young man, African-

         19  American in Gowanus houses, named Nicholas Haywood

         20  was shot and killed.  I was then a police officer

         21  and I stood in front of Abbey Square Mall, and I

         22  held a look- alike toy gun next to my then police .9

         23  millimeter and I asked the question of which is the

         24  real McCoy. I said then that Geoffrey the Giraffe

         25  had the blood of America's youth on his hand.  Then
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          2  Michael Goldsten, the CEO of Toys- R- Us, reached

          3  out to me, and we were able to influence Toys- R- Us

          4  to stop the sale of look- alike toy guns.

          5                 Since that time, and that's when I

          6  was a cop, which made all the papers -- since that

          7  time, persons such as Eric Adams for the 100 blacks

          8  in law enforcement who care, Congressman Ed Towns,

          9  and Councilman Al Vann, and many other, David Weprin

         10  and others have joined in the fight, and people who

         11  were on the front line long before -- some of those

         12  names that I just mentioned were on the fight long

         13  before 1994.  I just wanted to acknowledge Toys- R-

         14  Us and Michael Goldstein for that courageous

         15  decision that he made to stop the look- alike toy

         16  guns.

         17                 Inspector Silks, it's good to see you

         18  again, as you were my commanding officer when I was

         19  a police academy instructor for a few years.  So

         20  I'll ask you one simple question -- and I am proud

         21  to be a prime sponsor, along with Councilman Al

         22  Vann, and Councilman David Weprin for taking the

         23  leadership in making this quality, which I conceive

         24  is quality legislation.

         25                 One simple question.  Though you
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          2  already know this is a toy gun, and as you know I am

          3  a retired police officer, so, therefore, as a

          4  retired police officer we get to carry a shield. One

          5  quick question.  Nighttime, which one is real?  This

          6  is the simple question that every police officer has

          7  to ask.  Can a cop determine in the nighttime which

          8  one is real?  We've talked about the fact that these

          9  have been painted, but in the dark, even if a toy

         10  gun is pink or yellow, in the dark can a cop make

         11  the difference?  He can't tell.  So the fact that

         12  the law only deals with the yellow or the pink, in

         13  the nighttime a police officer still can't tell.

         14                 Inspector, would you agree you still

         15  can't tell the difference?

         16                 INSPECTOR SILKS:  Mr. Councilman, as

         17  you say, in various lighting conditions it would be

         18  very difficult to distinguish the actual from the

         19  imitation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Again, this is

         21  quality legislation that this Council, with our

         22  Speaker Gifford Miller, and, of course, Councilman

         23  Reed and all of us are committed to protecting the

         24  lives of young people, also protecting the lives of

         25  police officers and protecting the lives of
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          2  citizens.

          3                 Thank you so very much, Inspector

          4  Silks.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          6                 Council Member Liu, you had a

          7  question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 Not so much a question, then a short

         11  comment, which is to first thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We're happy to

         13  receive short comments as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 I want to thank your leadership in

         17  holding this hearing on this very important bill,

         18  and I'm proud to prime sponsor this along with my

         19  colleagues David Weprin and Al Vann.

         20                 I think that it is somewhat sad that

         21  its become necessary, and I do believe that it has

         22  become necessary to ban the sale of toy guns in this

         23  City because of the simple fact that people have

         24  held toy guns, has lead to deaths.  There have been

         25  a few instances that my colleagues have already
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          2  mentioned.

          3                 Several years ago an Asian- American,

          4  16- year- old honor student was also killed because

          5  he was holding a toy gun. He was killed with a

          6  point- blank shot to the head by a police officer

          7  who had mistaken the toy gun for a real gun.  And so

          8  this is measure that while it is sad that we do have

          9  to go to these lengths to protect lives, this is a

         10  bill that when enacted will save lives, particularly

         11  the lives of young people, and it will also better

         12  enable our police force to defend our communities.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         15                 Council Member Vann.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yeah.  Thank

         17  you, Chair.

         18                 Inspector, is there any data that

         19  you've collected that would reveal whether or not

         20  there's either an increase or decrease in crimes

         21  committed with toy guns?

         22                 MS. PETITO:  Council Member, I'm

         23  Susan Petito.

         24                 We don't have reliable data,

         25  unfortunately, because we switched in 2002 to a new
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          2  way of collecting our arrest information called the

          3  OMNI- Form.  So we have about 170 instances of

          4  arrest in 2002 where it's checked off that a weapon,

          5  a toy gun was used in the commission of the crime,

          6  but that data isn't reliable.  So I would not --

          7  it's certainly an estimate, but it's not absolutely

          8  reliable data because of the change in the form.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  What year was

         10  that?

         11                 MS. PETITO:  2002.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Prior to 2002,

         13  data was kept differently?

         14                 MS. PETITO:  Yes, it was kept

         15  differently in what's called the On- Line Booking

         16  System, and there was over 300 in 2001.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Dealing with

         18  toys.

         19                 MS. PETITO:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Okay.

         21                 Do you have similar data dealing with

         22  the number of times a police officer had to use his

         23  weapon, to discover later that the alleged,

         24  whatever, had a toy or simulated?

         25                 INSPECTOR SILKS:  Yes, sir, Mr.
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          2  Councilman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Would you just

          4  identify yourself again.

          5                 INSPECTOR SILKS:  I'm sorry.  I'm

          6  Inspector Steve Silks again.

          7                 Sir, the year cited in the last five

          8  years since 1998, the NYPD police officers have had

          9  firearms discharge in approximately 800 instances.

         10  Significantly reduced from previous years.

         11                 Of the situations where an imitation

         12  or a toy or a BB or starters pistol was involved,

         13  there were 12 instances of those 800.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  And finally,

         15  Mr. Chairman, if I may.

         16                 What number of fatalities have

         17  occurred in say the last five years, whatever period

         18  of time you have data, where a police officer has

         19  discharged their weapon and, in fact, a person was

         20  killed?  Do you have any data?

         21                 INSPECTOR SILKS:  Yeah.  At this time

         22  I don't have the specific numbers, but we can get

         23  them to you, sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  I'd appreciate

         25  that.  Let's go back five years with that.
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          2                 Thank you, Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Vann.  Thank you all on the panel for joining us.

          5                 Oh, I'm sorry.  Be still because my

          6  colleague is sitting right behind me, you know, let

          7  me look over my shoulder when I'm running for

          8  office.  I trust my colleagues in the back here, but

          9  I don't know their hand is up.

         10                 Council Member Sanders?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  That's all

         12  right, sir, I always have your back.

         13                 It's always good to see President

         14  Adams and my constituent in the fine organization

         15  that they have, which we need to do more to support.

         16                 Two weeks ago, Mr. Chair, in my own

         17  district, a mentally disturbed person was shot in

         18  the 31st.  I represent southeast Queens, the 31st,

         19  Laurelton, Springfield Gardens, half of the

         20  Rockaways and other great places.  A mentally

         21  disturbed person was shot with a fake gun.  Turned

         22  out to be a fake gun. Had this gun been painted some

         23  other color, pink, orange, some other color, perhaps

         24  that person would have been restrained in other

         25  ways.  So this is not a theoretical exercise that
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          2  we're having, we're actually doing something that

          3  may save lives here.

          4                 I would have to join my colleague,

          5  Council Member Barron and say that the Libertarian

          6  have either taken a racist action or at best they

          7  are other worldly just not connected to anything on

          8  the ground.  I can understand the need, if one

          9  wishes, to disagree to make some real statement

         10  about some situation, but wouldn't it be horrible if

         11  one of those very guns that they handout to one of

         12  these youth, end up with that youth being killed.

         13  I'm sure then that they would come and say that that

         14  youth had the right, it's a perfect freedom to go

         15  out there and get themselves killed.  But how about

         16  the youth's family, how about the police, how about

         17  all the rest of us, well, there I go thinking again.

         18    Gets me in trouble.

         19                 I also have to agree with Councilman

         20  Barron, that we really need to find a way to have

         21  the police understand that it's just hell on all of

         22  us when there is a person shot, if there are other

         23  ways of restraining.  Now I was in service myself.

         24  So I understand that a deadly force can only be used

         25  in certain ways, and I also understand that it's
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          2  kind of nice to go home at night.  It's kind of nice

          3  to go home after all is said and done.            So

          4  we really need to find a way to do this, whether

          5  this is training, whether this is working with the

          6  community too, whether this is all of these things.

          7  I believe that this City Council is committed to

          8  finding a way to reduce. Will we ever stop

          9  everything totally?  Not in this world.  But can we

         10  do something about it and make sure that we live in

         11  a more just society?  Absolutely.

         12                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         13  And I want to thank Councilman Barron for pointing

         14  those things out also.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Council

         16  Member Davis -- Sanders, and I don't make that

         17  mistake -- better.

         18                 I want to thank this panel and offer

         19  up the next panel which is in opposition.  Mr. Rick

         20  Locker, and Daniel Shure.

         21                 One is -- Mr. Shure is from the

         22  Strombecker Corporation.  But you will identify

         23  yourselves for the record, and Mr. Locker says he is

         24  with the Toy Industry Association.

         25                 Welcome, gentlemen.  When the light
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          2  is off, the microphone is off.  So please in

          3  whatever particular order, turn the microphone on

          4  and identify yourselves for the record.

          5                 MR. SHURE:  I'm Daniel Shure.  I'm

          6  Chief Executive Officer of Strombecker Corporation.

          7  I'm going to go first.

          8                 Thank you for allowing me to appear

          9  before the Council today to provide testimony on

         10  behalf of Strombecker Corporation in connection with

         11  Intro. 298, dealing with imitation firearms.

         12                 What I'd like to do is very briefly

         13  tell you a little bit about our company, a little

         14  bit about our business in manufacturing toy guns,

         15  amongst other types of toys, and what the effect of

         16  this law would be on our company, and then I want to

         17  tell you why we think toy guns are quite critical

         18  for the development of little boys and girls, and

         19  why they should continue to be available on the

         20  marketplace.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I'm sorry.  I

         22  really didn't hear what you said.  There's a lot of

         23   --

         24                 MR. SHURE:  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Just back up two
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          2  sentences.

          3                 MR. SHURE:  Well, what I'd like to do

          4  is tell you a little bit about our company, a little

          5  bit about our manufacturing of toy guns, why we

          6  think toy guns are good for boys and girls to be

          7  able to play with, and what the effect of the

          8  passage of this law would be on our company.

          9                 Strombecker Corporation is America's

         10  oldest toy company.  We date back to 1876.  We're a

         11  family owned company, founded by my great-

         12  grandfather, a Lithuanian immigrant.  I'm the fourth

         13  generation of the family to manage the business.  We

         14  began not as a toy company, but as a publishing

         15  company, publishing The National Laundry Journal,

         16  which was a trade magazine for laundries.  In the

         17  early 1880's we began manufacturing miniature toy

         18  flat irons, which we sold to laundries so they could

         19  use them as toys or premiums and give them to the

         20  children who came with their parents to pick up the

         21  family's laundry.

         22                 You've all seen that original toy.

         23  They're the flat irons which you see today used as

         24  markers in the famous board game, Monopoly.  In

         25  fact, all the markers in Monopoly, and Clue, and
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          2  many other games started life as premiums that our

          3  company sold in the 1880s and 1890.  At some point

          4  our management decided the toy business was

          5  publishing and we become solely a toy company.

          6                 In 1908, we made the world's first

          7  ever die- cast metal toy car.  It was called a

          8  Tootsietoy, named after the factory manager's

          9  daughter, whose nickname was Toots.  Today, all of

         10  our toys say Tootsietoy in the upper- left hand of

         11  the package, but we compete in many different

         12  categories of basic non television advertised toys.

         13  All the kinds of toys that we make are the toys that

         14  our children play with, we play with, our parents

         15  played with our children.  We make soap bubbles and

         16  bubble blowing toys, housekeeping toys, wooden toys

         17  such as blocks, rack toys like paddle balls and jump

         18  ropes and jacks, and importantly western role play,

         19  which is more commonly known as cowboy guns and gun

         20  and holster sets.  In fact, our American West brand

         21  of cowboy cap guns in the leading brand in the

         22  world.

         23                 We're headquartered in Chicago.  We

         24  have two factories in the USA, and we also make many

         25  toys in the Orient. We employ about 250 people, of
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          2  which approximately two- thirds are factory

          3  associates and union members.

          4                 I have with me today two of our best

          5  selling toy guns.  One is a single gun on a blister

          6  card, and the other one is --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  One is, what did

          8  you say?

          9                 MR. SHURE:  Just a single cowboy gun

         10  on a card.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  A single cowboy

         12  gun.

         13                 MR. SHURE:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Okay.

         15                 MR. SHURE:  And the other is a double

         16  holster set. These are our two best selling toy

         17  guns.  These guns are modeled after the guns you

         18  would see on the famous cowboy TV shows and movies.

         19  They are pre- 1989 Colts and Remingtons, and I think

         20  that you can easily see they would not be mistaken

         21  for a real gun, or even for a toy version of a

         22  modern day gun.  They're role play toys, plain and

         23  simple.

         24                 We're a small company.  Our

         25  customers, however, are quite large.  They're
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          2  discount stores like Wal- Mart, stores like -- toy

          3  stores like Toys- R- Us, grocery stores such as

          4  Albertson and drug chains like Rite Aid.  Almost all

          5  of our accounts are national or international in

          6  their distribution.

          7                 The Western business or cowboy gun

          8  business for us is our second largest category of

          9  business, accounting for approximately 25- percent

         10  of our sales.  Without those sales we would be hard-

         11  pressed to stay in business.  We sell over 10

         12  million toy cowboy guns each year.  Unfortunately,

         13  these are quite inexpensive toys.  The average

         14  retail is two dollars for a toy like this.  And

         15  while important to us, the category, our category,

         16  the cowboy guns, is a very small piece of the toy

         17  business, less than 50- million dollars, out of an

         18  industry that's over 20- billion dollars in sales.

         19  It doesn't make a dent in the overall results of our

         20  customers like Wal- Mart, but it's quite important

         21  to us.

         22                 Wal- Mart, with several thousand

         23  stores is the nations number one retailer of toys,

         24  accounting for 25 percent of all toys sold.  Toys-

         25  R- Us is number two.  To get toys into their stores,
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          2  we ship to the retailers' regional distribution

          3  centers. Each of these centers then puts together

          4  truckloads of product to ship to individual stores.

          5  These stores are generally from one distribution

          6  center, would be stored dozens of stores over

          7  several different states.

          8                 The retailers that we sell to are not

          9  willing to assume the cost and complexity in

         10  segregating goods based on local laws regarding

         11  imitation firearms.  The business is just not that

         12  important to them.  What they will do is simply stop

         13  buying for a warehouse that services New York City.

         14  What that will do to us is we will lose business not

         15  only in New York City, but across the tri- state

         16  area, because that's what the distribution center

         17  service.  That's business that we can't afford to

         18  lose.  To the retailers it's irrelevant.  To us,

         19  it's the jobs of 250 associates, who are the primary

         20  wage earners for their families.

         21                 But beyond our own interest, toy

         22  cowboy guns are important to the children who play

         23  with them.  They are role play toys.  Role play toys

         24  allow children to pretend they're something other

         25  than children.  Children want to emulate their
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          2  heroes. Among their heroes are policemen, soldiers

          3  and cowboys.  They want to be like their heroes.

          4  They want to dress up like them.  To be a cowboy

          5  means wearing a cowboy hat, having spurs, a lasso,

          6  and a double holster with guns around your waist,

          7  just like the cowboys you see on TV and in movies.

          8                 Playing cowboy also allows children

          9  to feel they have control over their imaginary

         10  universe.  They can put order into their world, and

         11  it allows them to play actively, not aggressively.

         12  Watch boys running around on the playground.  No one

         13  stands still when they're playing cowboy.  Nobody

         14  stands waiting around for the bad guy to get to

         15  them, they have to run and chase the bad guy down.

         16  And you learn how to play, how to share and have

         17  turns.  I get to be the good guy first, and after

         18  several minutes of play we switch and you get to be

         19  the good guy.

         20                 Now I wish that the children of New

         21  York City could safely play policemen and run around

         22  the streets with toy replicas of the guns they see

         23  policemen have every single day. But the sad fact is

         24  in a City like New York, there are young boys

         25  walking around with real guns, and policemen are
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          2  rightly concerned that a child with what looks like

          3  a toy gun may, in fact, be a real gun.  That's not,

          4  fortunately, the case in most of America.  In rural

          5  and suburban America, policemen have the luxury of

          6  when they see a child carrying a toy gun, they have

          7  a little luxury of knowing that they really are

          8  carrying a real gun.  In New York City that isn't,

          9  nor should it be the assumption.

         10                 And so, we support legislation to

         11  prevent potential confusion.  And there is

         12  legislation, the current New York City law does

         13  that, and the federal statutes that the New York

         14  City law follows does that also.  And so what we're

         15  afraid of is that you'll lump toy cowboy guns,

         16  styled after the Colts and the Remingtons of the

         17  1880s and 1890s, to be painted with the same broad

         18  brush as imitation firearms of real guns.

         19                 There's never been -- none of our

         20  toys have ever been involved in an accident in which

         21  a child was harmed or even arrested.  There has

         22  never been a report of any of our toy guns being

         23  used in the commission of a crime.  They were never

         24  mistaken for real.  Bad guys do not commit crimes

         25  with 100- year old pistols or toy versions of those

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  pistols.  And if a criminal tried to paint our

          3  silver vacuum metalized toy guns to make them look

          4  black, they would find that the paint will not stick

          5  to the vacuum metal, it drips off before it has a

          6  chance to dry.

          7                 I should mention that we've done a

          8  lot of work over the years with the Law Enforcement

          9  Alliance of America, which represents policemen, not

         10  chiefs of police, but policemen. And their stance

         11  has always been very supportive of the toy gun

         12  industry, because the fact of the matter is that no

         13  one has ever been killed because they were carrying

         14  a toy gun.  People have been killed, and not very

         15  many because they had been threatening and wanting

         16  people to assume that they're carrying a real gun.

         17  But nobody has ever been killed with a toy gun.

         18                 Even Toys- R- Us, Councilman Davis,

         19  when you were involved with Toys- R- Us, while they

         20   -- they did the right thing, and they dropped all

         21  toy guns that looked like modern- day toy guns, but

         22  they kept water guns and cowboy guns, and other

         23  things that could not be mistaken for real guns, and

         24  we support that.

         25                 I urge the City of New York to keep
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          2  their statute, which is close in line with the

          3  Federal statute, and I urge you not to make the

          4  changes that you're considering today.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. LOCKER:  My name is Rick Locker,

          7  and I'm counsel to the Toy Industry Association,

          8  which is based in New York.  And I thank you for the

          9  opportunity to appear and testify today.

         10                 I appeared in this same august in

         11  1997, when we last considered the revision to the

         12  Administrative Code. Testifying at that time -- and

         13  I note in the audience was Sergeant Adams, who is

         14  now, I'm happy to say lieutenant.  And I know --

         15  applaud also Councilman Davis's efforts in this

         16  area, to Councilman Weprin, we attended law school

         17  together, I say hello.

         18                 The Toy Industry Association is a

         19  not- for- profit trade association composed of more

         20  than 300 manufacturers of all types of toys and toy

         21  products.  Our offices are located at 1115 Broadway

         22  in New York.  Our members manufacture and sell in

         23  excess of 85 percent of all toys sold in the United

         24  States, and about 50 percent of all toys sold around

         25  the entire world.  The United States leads the world
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          2  in designing, marketing, producing and disseminating

          3  toys not just here but throughout the world.  Our

          4  members are global in character, and their sales are

          5  made extensively throughout the U.S. And everywhere.

          6

          7                 And we've been located in New York

          8  City, believe it or not, for more than 100 years.

          9  We are the sponsor of the American International Toy

         10  Fair, what we all call and know as Toy Fair.  This

         11  is the largest toy trade show in the United States.

         12  It has been held annually in New York every year,

         13  and we're committed to continue to stay in this

         14  great City since 1934. We're recognized as the

         15  world's most prestigious Toy Fair.  As a matter of

         16  fact, the next Toy Fair will take place in a short

         17  time, from February 16th to 19th, and it involves

         18  more than one million- square feet of office space,

         19  surrounding the 23rd Street area in Manhattan; and,

         20  additionally, we occupy the entire Javits Convention

         21  Center.  It has been estimated, by the City and the

         22  Mayor's office as well, that the economic benefit to

         23  the City of New York will exceed 300- million

         24  dollars a year.  We bring in more than 22,000

         25  visitors to the City of New York.
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          2                 Toy safety and the safety of children

          3  is a paramount concern to our industry.  Together

          4  with the U.S. Government, we and our members have

          5  led the world in the development of toy safety

          6  standards.  We invest heavily in child development

          7  research, dynamic safety testing, quality assurance

          8  testing, risk analysis, anthropometric data, youth

          9  studies, children.  Children are our business, and

         10  we take that business extremely seriously.

         11                 Since the late 1960s, we've

         12  established tradition of working with others in

         13  ensure the manufacture and distribution of safe toy

         14  products.  We're proud of our record.  We've had

         15  significant accomplishments over many decades.  We

         16  have a relationship with the National Safety

         17  Council, the National Bureau of Standards, the

         18  American National Standards Institute, the

         19  International Standards Organization.  We lead the

         20  world in the development of voluntary safety

         21  standards;  ASTM F- 963, the U.S/ safety standard.

         22  We're involved in the development and work with EM-

         23  71, the European standard, ISO 81- 24, the

         24  international standard.

         25                 We continue to play an important role

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  with these organizations and we work with consumer

          3  advocacy groups, such as National Safe Kids

          4  Campaign.  We work with federal regulators like the

          5  U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission.  We

          6  participate with the international groups of the

          7  Consumer Product and Health and Safety Organization.

          8    And it may come as a surprise to you, we are here,

          9  and we're proud of the fact that we were the

         10  sponsors and supporters of the 1988 Federal

         11  Imitation Toy Gun Law.  There is not one for real

         12  firearms, but for toys that is our bill.  We

         13  supported it, we sponsored it, we brought it to

         14  fruition, working with Senator Dole and

         15  Representative Moorehead, the National Association

         16  of Police Chief, the Secret Service, the Federal

         17  Bureau of Investigation, and many others.  We're

         18  proud of that accomplishment.

         19                 These statutes and regulations are

         20  set forth in my statement.  We don't have to dwell

         21  on them in great detail.  I'd urge the Council and

         22  the staff to study them, to understand that when we

         23  appeared here in 1997, we supported that law.  We

         24  supported making those provisions, the bright orange

         25  plug, and those bright colorations and the markings
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          2  part of the bill.  We work with our retailers like

          3  Toys- R- Us, to ensure that program.

          4                 We also sponsor, and no one seems to

          5  know about it very much, but we do, programs and our

          6  members certainly do, members programs, we give away

          7  toys to charities annually, including real toys for

          8  real guns, not the other way around, not imitation

          9  firearms.  Real toys for actual firearms.

         10                 And we support the adoption, as Mr.

         11  Shure has indicated in terms of the importance of

         12  it, of uniformed laws, that don't lead to a chaotic

         13  imposition of a thousand different requirements, by

         14  a thousand different localities, imposing bans,

         15  different colors, different selections, different

         16  definitions. And that's one of the reasons we

         17  supported the Federal Toy Gun Law.

         18                 As you know, this law requires that

         19  toy and look alike and imitation firearms be colored

         20  in the following ways:  A blazing orange solid plug,

         21  permanently affixed to the muzzle at the end of the

         22  barrel, it's an integral part of that product, or

         23  and the covering in New York City of that barrel,

         24  the exterior surface in white or bright red, orange,

         25  yellow, green, blue, pink, purple, singly or in
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          2  combination to make it clear that those are not real

          3  firearms

          4                 Now what was the goal of this bill?

          5  The goal of the bill was to prevent the accidental

          6  shooting by police officers or others of children in

          7  play.  No bill, no law, no provision, nothing that

          8  we could think of will protect a teenager or an

          9  adult intent on committing a crime, a criminal

         10  felony, a robbery.

         11                 I want to take exception with some

         12  things that have been characterized here, and I

         13  think one of the problems we have is, what is a toy

         14  gun?  When the inspector testified about the

         15  incidents with toy guns, I would note that their

         16  database is not able to distinguish between a fake

         17  firearm, an air gun, which they characterize as toy

         18  guns, and a variety of makeshift products.  I would

         19  put forward that these are not the traditional types

         20  of toys that we are talking about, that we make and

         21  distribute and produce.  These are something else.

         22                 That incident that occurred

         23  tragically a few months ago, with Mr. Newsome

         24  involved not a toy, not one painted, as Councilman

         25  Weprin showed or Councilman Davis showed, but an
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          2  actual .22 caliber air gun.  We do not consider that

          3  a toy.  We call that a guy, whether it's an air gun

          4  or a gun that uses explosives, we call that a call.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Mr. Locker.

          6                 MR. LOCKER:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We need you to try

          8  to wrap up-

          9                 MR. LOCKER:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  -- Because there's

         11  a lot of questions, and I imagine that your comments

         12  will fold in better as addressing some of my

         13  colleagues.  Okay?

         14                 MR. LOCKER:  Yes, absolutely.

         15                 Well, I'd like to talk about the

         16  proposals in the amendment.

         17                 Now the proposed amendment before the

         18  Council is basically to retain the first sentence of

         19  10- 131(g)(1), and to eliminate everything

         20  thereafter.  This would have the practical effect if

         21  changing the law from a marking law to an outright

         22  ban on the sale, possession, use of any toy or

         23  imitation firearm, which substantially duplicates or

         24  can reasonably be perceived to be an actual firearm.

         25
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          2                 Our problem is, what does that mean?

          3  All of the exceptions embodied in the current code

          4  that protect products like Mr. Shure talked about,

          5  the traditional cowboy gun, the whimsical Star Trek

          6  or Star Wars fazer gun, all these things that are

          7  currently -- these types of products which are

          8  currently available and for sale at Toys- R- Us,

          9  despite their best efforts to remove items that

         10  actually replica real firearms.  All of the

         11  exceptions embodied in the code fit the actual

         12  production which New York City is the center of

         13  theatrical use or for Western guns, modeled on

         14  actual firearms produced before 1898 would be

         15  eliminated.

         16                 The problem created by use of this

         17  language is that it will create confusion in the

         18  marketplace for producers of lawful products and

         19  also for enforcers of the code like the police or

         20  the Consumers Affairs Department.

         21                 What does this language mean?  The

         22  language used is simply too imprecise.  As the

         23  Inspector pointed out, needs a better definition of

         24  what an actual firearm is, and you need a better

         25  definition of what a replica is.
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          2                 Can any of the items that

          3  demonstrated today, that I showed you be reasonably

          4  perceived to be an actual firearm? I'm sure if you

          5  asked any police officer here, including the

          6  Councilmen, who are former police officers, they

          7  would tell you the same thing.  That under the right

          8  circumstances anything could be the case, even

          9  though no reasonable person might conclude that they

         10  are, in fact, replica firearms.

         11                 These terms need to be better defined

         12  as part of any proposed amendment to the code.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Mr. Locker, is

         14  there anything more specific to the legislation

         15  because I'm going to have to stop you.  And I don't

         16  want to do that because you're going to respond to

         17  questions here.

         18                 MR. LOCKER:  All right.  I

         19  understand.  I'll be happy --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Maybe the rest of

         21  your comments can wait.

         22                 MR. LOCKER:  Mr. Chairman, thank you.

         23    They can wait.  I'd be happy to respond.

         24                 The only point I would make is that

         25  the exceptions should be embodied.
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          2                 I would also point out a note, to

          3  remind everyone here that the sale of spray paint to

          4  minors, under the age of 18 in this City is already

          5  a violation of the Administrative Code.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          8  Because we also have people that need to be out

          9  because they have a plane to catch.  It would have

         10  been nice if they had told me that a little bit

         11  earlier, but we are going to try to accommodate

         12  everybody's schedule.

         13                 So I'm going to call on my

         14  colleagues, as I recognize or saw that they had

         15  their hand up, and I'm going to encourage them to be

         16  brief.  And the lineup is like this:  Davis,

         17  Sanders, Weprin, Barron and Liu.  And the Chair can

         18  figure out what brief means, that's my prerogative.

         19                 Council Member Davis?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Yes, sir,

         21  Chairman.

         22                 One, Nicholas Haywood, 1994, was shot

         23  with a look alike toy gun.  A gun that looked like a

         24  real weapon.  Gowanus house, the police officer

         25  responding, coming up the staircase, the kid was
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          2  playing in the staircase, and he was shot and

          3  killed.

          4                 Have you ever -- just quick

          5  questions.  Have you ever visited, any one of you,

          6  have you ever visited a family of a child shot and

          7  killed by a police officer or anyone for that

          8  matter, who was holding a toy gun?

          9                 MR. LOCKER:  We work with those

         10  families when we sponsored the bill in 1988 with the

         11  Federal Congress.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  So you have?

         13                 MR. LOCKER:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Second

         15  question.  Have you ever responded in the middle of

         16  the night or in a dark stairwell and you had to make

         17  a split- second decision?

         18                 Now I challenge you.  Could you

         19  please hold up this toy gun?  I challenge you that

         20  in the night -- I'm not even going to go from the

         21  standpoint of spraying it -- I challenge you that in

         22  the middle of the night, in the dark stairwell or in

         23  a dark alley that when a police officer has to make

         24  a split- second decision that the shape of that can

         25  be misinterpreted as a real gun, or even if it's in
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          2  the pocket and it's poked up, I mean, but we'll just

          3  deal with the middle of the night.  Do you think

          4  that that toy gun right there, your Western gun, can

          5  be misinterpreted in a dark setting.  Yes or no?

          6                 MR. LOCKER:  I think that that gun

          7  can be mistaken in the dark of the night just as if

          8  I pointed my finger at you, or a wallet, or a candy

          9  bar.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  I understand,

         11  but the likelihood of a finger being misinterpreted

         12  or a wallet being misinterpreted with that look-

         13  alike toy gun it rises.  A finger, yes, can be

         14  misinterpreted 100- to- one.  A wallet, 50- to- one.

         15    I'm just making up numbers, but that look- alike

         16  toy gun the odds may be five- to- one.

         17                 Last couple, and then I'm finished.

         18                 MR. LOCKER:  I would just argue that

         19  the last incident we had in Chicago was a fellow who

         20  was shot when he pulled out his cell phone.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Okay.  Do you

         22  think that your company -- and let me make it clear,

         23  I understand you.  I mean, you've got a company, you

         24  know, and I admire the fact that your company --

         25  this is a family- owned business for years.  I
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          2  understand that part.  Do you think that your

          3  company should be liable if a child or someone is

          4  shot while playing or holding your particular

          5  product?

          6                 MR. LOCKER:  Absolutely not.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  And last but

          8  not least for me.  It would be nice if your company

          9  took the initiative and created a toy that could not

         10  be interpreted, working with police law enforcement

         11  officials and others, and create some of the things

         12  you held up, outside of your bag, sir, were, in fact

         13   -- I mean it would be very difficult to

         14  misinterpret.  That one is close.  The other one,

         15  sir, that one in nighttime, that one is shaped more

         16  like a real gun, I mean, you know, give me a break.

         17  But this one right here could be misinterpreted, and

         18  I encourage you to work with because they have water

         19  guns that's big and shaped, and so it's about the

         20  look- alike.  Please look at the legislation

         21  closely.

         22                 MR. LOCKER:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  It's talking

         24  about look alike and replicas, but thank you so --

         25  I'm finished.  I just want to thank you.

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 MR. LOCKER:  Yeah.  Our point was

          3  just that it has to be better defined, and even this

          4  product we believe could be painted and mistaken in

          5  those circumstances, as could a 99- cent pipe, which

          6  people might confuse for a real firearm, which his

          7  cheaper than a toy gun for any hardware store or

          8  perhaps even a spray garden hose.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  But, please do

         10  not --

         11                 MR. LOCKER:  And we're not proposing

         12  you ban garden hoses, Council Member Davis.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Look, the fact

         14  of the matter is, please do not make the mistake

         15  that there are -- have been incidents that where

         16  there have been shootings, but there have been so

         17  many more documented incidents across America with

         18  look- alike toy guns.  So please, let's not, you

         19  know, apples and oranges.

         20                 MR. LOCKER:  Again, we have to --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Council

         22  Member Davis.

         23                 We're going to go to Council Member

         24  Sanders.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDER:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.  To quo (sic) was effective, I see.

          3                 As Chair of Economic Development for

          4  the City, I applaud you and your company for staying

          5  with New York, and we should do everything we can to

          6  make sure that you thrive.  I'm in a very

          7  interesting position in New York City.  You see, on

          8  this argument I'm not your typical bleeding heart

          9  liberal.  I'm a former Marine, and you know, we know

         10  one or two things about those things, and we also

         11  understand that what is a purpose for guns and

         12  things of this nature.

         13                 Now part of your argument, sir, had

         14  to do with guns and things of this nature make for a

         15  healthy childhood or some variation of that.  I know

         16  this is not your total argument, but this is the

         17  part that I understood it, and that the kids need

         18  role models, and some of these were worthy role

         19  models that they were emulating.  I would assert,

         20  sir, that there are other role model equally valid,

         21  whether we talk of Martin Luther King, Malcolm K,

         22  David Thoreau, or one of our fallen astronauts that

         23  we can get -- we don't have to -- in terms of games,

         24  we don't have to have games that have killing as its

         25  core.  Cops and robbers are you either catch the
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          2  robber or you kill the guy or whatever, I know, I

          3  played it.  There are other games.  How about the

          4  all American sport, baseball?  There's no killing at

          5  it's core. Football, basketball, all of these very

          6  worthy games which teach leadership, sharing and all

          7  of this good stuff.

          8                 Guns don't kill people, people do.

          9  Okay.  Same can be said about nuclear bombs, trident

         10  submarines, and poison gas, et cetera, et cetera.

         11  At some point, sir, there has to be responsibility

         12  of people.  You see, when toys are found to be

         13  defective, you guys are the smartest and they're

         14  withdrawn.  You don't hold onto things that are

         15  dumb.  If the toy is too small and it's killing

         16  folk, we withdraw it, we do, we make right and we go

         17  on.  You see, as I conclude, I'm reminded of a 10-

         18  year- old that was in California.  And it was in the

         19  middle of the night and there was a breaking nearby

         20  and the police were called, and this kid got

         21  separated from his mother in the house, and he heard

         22  all kinds of strange, strange sounds.  So he went

         23  into his little room and grabbed a teddy bear and a

         24  toy gun and went into his closet.  That kid is dead

         25  today.

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 Could he have been saved today if the

          3  gun was painted bright orange, pink, blue or

          4  whatever?  We don't know, my friends, but I bet you

          5  if the cop were here to make that statement, I have

          6  no doubt that he would say, man, give me one more

          7  chance at it because that cop has to live with that

          8  for the rest of his life, so does the parent and

          9  everyone else.

         10                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         11                 MR. LOCKER:  I guess that was a

         12  question.  So to answer that question, we believe

         13  all those role models are excellent role models and

         14  we favor it.  But, ultimately, the decision as to

         15  how children should play, and who they should play

         16  with should be the decision of parents of that

         17  child, not the City Council for everyone.  And we

         18  would like to believe that our Federal Imitation Gun

         19  Law and the law we worked with the City Council in

         20  1997 to craft is being effective as it applies to

         21  children.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  We're not

         23  telling them what to play and who to play with, we

         24  just want them to be able to come home at night to

         25  their parents, and so do we.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Council

          3  Member Sanders.

          4                 Council Member Weprin?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes, thank

          6  you, Mr. Chair, Mr. Acting Chair.

          7                 Mr. Shure, I have a quick question

          8  for you, and then I have a quick question for Mr.

          9  Locker.

         10                 You stated in your testimony, I

         11  believe, that there have been very few incidents of

         12  mistaken identity, but there have been some.  Would

         13  you agree that two deaths since the beginning of the

         14  year, 2003, is two deaths too many, due to mistaken

         15  identity?

         16                 MR. SHURE:  What I stated was there's

         17  been no incidents involving our products.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I'm not

         19  asking about your products.  I'm asking about two

         20  deaths involving a mistaken identity of a toy gun.

         21  Would you state that that's two deaths too many?

         22  Would you agree with that statement?

         23                 MR. LOCKER:  I would make --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I'm asking

         25  Mr. Shure.
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          2                 MR. SHURE:  I would have to restate

          3  it so that I can agree.  I believe that any death is

          4  too many, but I don't believe --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So the answer

          6  is yes.

          7                 MR. SHURE:  No, the answer is not

          8  yes.  I don't believe it's because of mistaken

          9  identity due to toy guns.  I don't believe toy guns

         10  are why people are killed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  But you

         12  agree, though, that two deaths involving a mistaken

         13  identity and toy gun -- you're saying you don't

         14  agree that two deaths is too many?

         15                 MR. SHURE:  No, I didn't say that.  I

         16  said any death is too many, but I don't believe it

         17  had to do with toy guns, and the guns that caused

         18  that the guns that the people were holding when they

         19  were killed were not toy guns.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  You

         21  also stated in your testimony that your gun -- spray

         22  paint such as this could not stick to, and therefore

         23  it's not a problem with spray painting.  So I take

         24  from that statement that you agree that a normal

         25  water pistol that was originally painted bright
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          2  blue, that I spray painted myself, my 11- year- old

          3  daughter's gun, should be banned.  Do you agree with

          4  that statement?

          5                 MR. SHURE:  No, I absolutely do not.

          6  I think that a criminal, if he wants to commit an

          7  act and fool somebody into thinking they have a real

          8  gun, they can use a toy gun to do it, or they can

          9  use one of many numerous types to fool someone into

         10  thinking that they have a real gun, and the intent

         11  is the same as if they had the real gun, and they

         12  should be treated as if they're holding a real gun.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Oh, so it

         14  doesn't really matter that spray paint doesn't stick

         15  to your gun because you're against outlawing the ban

         16  of any toy guns.  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. SHURE:  That's incorrect.  All

         18  I'm saying --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  That seems to

         20  be what you said.

         21                 MR. SHURE:  Well, I don't think it --

         22  it was not what I said.  What I said, first of all,

         23  when I said that this cannot be mistaken for a real

         24  gun, and I said that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Does this
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          2  look like a real gun from where you are now?  Can

          3  this be reasonably interpreted to be a real gun, as

          4  you're looking at it right now?

          5                 MR. SHURE:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  This

          7  was a brightly colored blue water gun, that you'd

          8  think should not be banned.

          9                 MR. SHURE:  I think that if someone

         10  takes a brightly colored blue water gun, spray

         11  paints it black and goes out to commit a crime, they

         12  should be treated as if they're carrying a real gun.

         13    I think it's irrelevant that it began life as a

         14  toy.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So you're

         16  telling me that it has nothing to do with whether

         17  the gun looks like a real gun, or can be mistaken

         18  for a gun, you just think that it shouldn't matter

         19  because if someone attempts to commit a crime with a

         20  toy gun and it's mistaken for a real gun, and he's

         21  shot dead, it's his fault because he shouldn't have

         22  been committing that crime or attempting to commit

         23  that crime.  That's what you're saying, right?

         24                 MR. SHURE:  No, that's not what I'm

         25  saying.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  It sounds

          3  like you said it to me.

          4                 MR. SHURE:  I guess we have different

          5  opinions of how to interpret of what I'm saying.

          6  Shall I explain again?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Try again.

          8                 MR. SHURE:  Okay.  It's my belief

          9  that if somebody wants to commit a crime, if I were

         10  the victim I would prefer that they commit it with a

         11  toy gun, because I'm not going to be killed by that

         12  gun they're committing the crime with.  I think we

         13  have no issue with trying to regulate guns like

         14  that, that can be mistaken for real guns, that's one

         15  of the reasons that New York City has outlawed the

         16  sale of spray paint to children under the age of 18.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So again, you

         18  do agree that this should be outlawed, this gun?

         19                 MR. SHURE:  No, I do not agree with

         20  that.  I said, we're willing to live and we can

         21  abide with those guidelines, but that gun in the

         22  blue that it's molded in does not violate any

         23  federal guideline nor New York City guideline, and

         24  it should be legal.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  So it
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          2  has nothing to do with whether the spray paint can

          3  stick to the gun or not because you did make that

          4  statement in your testimony.  But you're basically

          5  revising that now and saying that that's not really

          6  a relevant issue.

          7                 MR. SHURE:  I'm absolutely not

          8  revising it.  I simply stated that if you were to be

          9  thinking along those lines, spray paint won't stick

         10  to our gun.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  But it can

         12  stick to a water gun like this?

         13                 MR. SHURE:  Evidently it an.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Council

         16  Member Weprin.

         17                 Council Member Barron?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Obviously,

         19  you gentlemen just don't get it.  First of all, it's

         20  been distortion.

         21                 Nicholas Hayward was killed on the

         22  stairwell in Brownsville.  He did not paint his gun,

         23  it was clearly a toy gun, similar to some of the toy

         24  guns you have there.  You can't misrepresent

         25  reality.  In reality this was not a painted gun,
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          2  this was not a youngster that was coming out to

          3  commit a crime, this was a youngster playing.  This

          4  was a youngster playing with a toy gun that was not

          5  painted.  We don't know whose gun it was, and I'm

          6  sure you didn't comb the nation and comb the City

          7  and really could validate that none of your toy guns

          8  were used in any of these incidents, whether people

          9  were shot or not.

         10                 Secondly, another youngster was

         11  riding his bike with a brightly colored water gun.

         12  Shot out 16 times.  Was not committing a crime.  You

         13  really don't get it, and this is not Andy of

         14  Mayberry, and Opie is out there playing with cowboys

         15  and Indians.  This is New York City.  Racism is a

         16  major factor how policing occurs.  White children

         17  don't get shot when they play with guns; black

         18  children do.

         19                 So you're missing it.  You guys

         20  really don't get it, and I hope at some point in

         21  your lives you realize that safety is more important

         22  than profit.

         23                 I thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 MR. SHURE:  Council, if that's a

         25  question, we do try to --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  That's not a

          3  question.  I just wanted to make a comment.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I think that was a

          6  comment that doesn't require a response to that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Right.

          8                 MR. LOCKER:  I'd like to respond, if

          9  I can.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, we

         11  appreciated your comments that you made.  Thank you

         12  both for being here.

         13                 MR. LOCKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         15                 The next panel is going to be -- I'm

         16  sorry.  Well, I didn't realize that because perhaps

         17  we didn't write you down here, Council Member Vann,

         18  and I was anxious to try to move us. But please ask

         19  your question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.

         21  I'll try and be brief, Chair.

         22                 I fully understand and would expect a

         23  businessman to come forward and to present a cogent

         24  and strong argument based on the economics.  I

         25  understand that, expect that, and maybe it could be
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          2  overwhelming.  We'd have to balance it and see.  But

          3  I think it's an insult when you try to convince me

          4  and influence me that playing with guns is healthy

          5  for their physical and mental development and so

          6  forth.  I take issue with it.  I think you lose

          7  credibility with me.  I don't know about the other

          8  members, I can't say that.  I have more respect for

          9  the logic of, you know, you may lose jobs, you know,

         10  may have to move, whatever, and I'll balance that,

         11  I'll evaluate that.  But to try and throw into that

         12  equation that somehow we're going to lose the

         13  development of our physical and mental development

         14  of our kids if they don't have a chance to play with

         15  guns, you lose me, you lose credibility, and then I

         16  have to question the other arguments that you

         17  present.  You follow me?

         18                 MR. LOCKER:  I never said that

         19  children should be playing with guns, I only said

         20  that they should be playing with toy guns.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you, you

         22  made my argument.  You can't distinguish between

         23  toys and real guns, that's the purpose of the

         24  legislation.

         25                 MR. LOCKER:  Fortunately, children
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          2  can distinguish between toy guns and real guns, and

          3  their parents have a responsibility also to

          4  distinguish.

          5                 If I lived in New York City, I

          6  wouldn't send my children out on the street to play

          7  with toy guns.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Well, sir, but

          9  police can't make that distinction and that's what

         10  we're talking about here.

         11                 MR. LOCKER:  Right, but then you'll

         12  have to ban candy bars, and wallets, and finger

         13  pointing, and carrots.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Well, maybe

         15  then we should take off the books any laws that

         16  would allow individuals to carry real guns, since

         17  guns don't kill, people do.  Why have any laws? Why

         18  should there be a law against the possession of an

         19  actual firearm.

         20                 MR. LOCKER:  I think the point is

         21  there are laws, and those laws should be enforced

         22  because they're not.  There's a law against spray

         23  paint and that should be enforced.  There's a law

         24  against menacing.  There's a law against criminal

         25  activity. There are these laws, and the marking law,
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          2  I believe, has worked fairly well according to

          3  various justice department analysis of it in

          4  preventing kids from being mistakenly shot in normal

          5  circumstances; nothing will protect that child in

          6  those unusual circumstances that result in those

          7  tragedies and the reality is it's happened as people

          8  have pointed out with wallets and candy bars.

          9                 In terms of the issue, I would urge

         10  you to look at the submission I gave you from

         11  Patricia Williams, who is a professor at Colombia

         12  University Law School, who writes and has written

         13  and won a MacArthur Foundation, a genius award for

         14  essays on race relations in the United States, who

         15  wrote this article, which is called, "Ask Dr. Mad

         16  Law."  In effect, it's a direct opposition to the

         17  law that's being proposed.

         18                 We're happy to work with the City

         19  Council, but what we thinks needs to be done is that

         20  the definition of what is or is not real or

         21  substantially real looking needs to be better

         22  defined and the exceptions for lawful products

         23  should be incorporated.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 The next panel is Dr. Kioumehr.

          4  She'll help us pronounce that.  And Eric Adams, both

          5  who have signed in to speak in favor of the

          6  Resolution, and this meeting is going to be

          7  adjourned at 3:15 or earlier.  So I appreciate you

          8  keeping your comments brief, and cogent and

          9  sparkling.

         10                 Doctor?

         11                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Good afternoon and

         12  thank you for letting me speak today.

         13                 And I have a plane to catch at three

         14  o'clock. Actually, I can leave and catch the plane

         15  at 5:30.  I hope I can make it.  So I have to go

         16  quickly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Ma'am, please tell

         18  us your name.

         19                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Okay.  It's Farideh

         20  Kioumehr.  I am the Executive Director of a non-

         21  profit organization called International Health and

         22  Epidemiology Research Center, and I'm an

         23  epidemiologist myself.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Okay.  Would you

         25  just be kind enough please, just so that we could
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          2  get this properly on the record to spell your name

          3  for us.

          4                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Okay.  The first name

          5  is F- a- r- i- d e- h.  And the last name is K- i-

          6  o- u- m- e- h- r.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          8                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  I want to say that I

          9  fly (sic) last night from Los Angeles, California,

         10  and arrive here about 10 this morning only to come

         11  and testify and go back this afternoon.  So that

         12  means it's so important, the safety of children is

         13  very important for us, so that was worth it to do,

         14  even more than that.  And if I don't catch a plane,

         15  maybe I have to stay with one of you tonight, I

         16  don't know.

         17                 And I lost my glasses, that's why I

         18  borrow one of these nice ladies here.  If she wants

         19  to leave, I don't -- I cannot read my statement.

         20                 So I want to say that I came here

         21  today from Los Angeles to testify against the danger

         22  of toy guns, and for the support of the bill that

         23  you're talking about today, and not only as an

         24  epidemiologist and public health major, but more

         25  importantly as a mother.
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          2                 Violence has reached its epidemic

          3  iceberg.  It is an increasingly a problem in our

          4  society, and it is affecting children every day.

          5  Violence is no longer an issue of criminal justice

          6  system, which is use to be, and not it's a public

          7  health issue, and a very great concern of public

          8  health.

          9                 And also I would like to say that

         10  violence is considered now a social epidemic disease

         11  in our nation, which as a society we need to address

         12  with our most importance and earnest.  As law

         13  makers, educators and leaders of this nation, we

         14  have the responsibility to protect our children and

         15  raise responsible citizens.  By giving toy guns to

         16  our kids we desensitize them to the matter of guns

         17  and violence.

         18                 I came here today to advocate for the

         19  removal of toy weapons and guns from stores, from

         20  our society, from factories, and our lives.

         21                 Across the country, children buy toy

         22  guns without being aware of the consequences and

         23  danger associated with playing with them.

         24  Throughout the year, the news has been filled with

         25  facts concerning with incidents of children who have
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          2  been shot, arrested, or shot others because of

          3  mistaking the toy gun with a real gun.

          4                 Children across the country play with

          5  toy weapons unassuming that toy gun could possible

          6  put them at risk with the law for playing with what

          7  it perceived to be, a toy, designed for children.

          8  Law enforces have arrested and even shot children

          9  who allegedly pointed a gun at them or others, or

         10  even just playing with them.  But in reality, the

         11  child simply played with a toy gun that was

         12  manufactured and sold to them by us adults.

         13                 Consider a few facts -- I've already

         14  given the fact sheet away, which is tremendous

         15  incidents in that, but I only touch a few of them.

         16            In 2002, in Whitmore Lake, Michigan, Tommy

         17  Davis, a seven- year- old boy -- I repeat -- seven-

         18  year- old boy faced three counts of felony assault

         19  charges for pointing a toy gun at three other

         20  youngsters and threatening to shoot them.  And I

         21  don't believe he should be arrested.  Actually, the

         22  manufacturers, or the parents. Or whoever gave this

         23  to the kid has to be arrested, not him.

         24                 On March 31st, 2000, in Brooklyn, New

         25  York, two teenagers, 19- year- old Tysheen Bourn,
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          2  and 17- year- old Andre Fields, were fatally shot by

          3  two undercover narcotic detectives while brandishing

          4  their toy gun.

          5                 In 1983, a five- year- old boy --

          6  please listen to that -- was killed in his own home

          7  by an Orange County police officer because he was

          8  holding a toy gun.

          9                 And this is in response to the

         10  gentleman talking before, this gun was very orange

         11  color and was very plastic, and was very not

         12  realistic looking, and this boy was in his own home

         13  when this happened.

         14                 On August 23, 1988, Michael Jones, a

         15  16- year- old boy, was shot 17 times and critically

         16  wounded by two police officers in Brooklyn, New

         17  York, while riding a bicycle because he had a water

         18  gun, and this is in answer to a few people which

         19  they talk about a water gun is not going to be

         20  dangerous, but this was a water gun and the boy was

         21  only riding a bicycle, not pointing any toy gun to

         22  anybody, and was shot and killed.

         23            In addition, incidents have occurred in

         24  which children have mistaken a real gun, which often

         25  exists in private homes for various reason, with a
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          2  toy gun.  This is a few examples:

          3                 On November 6, 2000, in Portland,

          4  Oregon -- listen to this -- a three- year- old boy

          5  shot his own father, 25- year- old father -- the

          6  name was Jonathon Davis Christian -- when he mistook

          7  his father's loaded .38 caliber revolver for a toy

          8  gun. His father left it on the kitchen table just

          9  for a few seconds while he went to get the key to

         10  lock the gun's trigger.

         11                 In 1993, in Las Vegas, Nevada -- that

         12  was not the only three- year- old boy, another

         13  three- year- old girl this time, find her father's

         14  loaded gun, a revolver, thinking it was a toy, she

         15  aimed, shot, and killed her pregnant mother, who was

         16  asleep on the sofa.  The mother died on the way to

         17  the hospital, and when they asked the kid why did

         18  you do that, he said I thought it was a toy, her own

         19  toy.

         20                 In 1991, another three- year- old boy

         21  in Northern California was shot and killed, not by

         22  police officer, not with another person, with his

         23  own grandfather.  That's very sad.  And the reason

         24  was, they were inside home, but the grandfather,

         25  thinking it was a toy, took his own gun and shoot at

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  kid, her grandson and the grandson died while they

          3  were playing.

          4                 These are only but a few examples out

          5  of many that occur every day.  These are not

          6  marginal and they are not isolated incidents, but

          7  repeated circumstances that occur involving a toy

          8  gun.

          9                 As I said, the fact sheet, when you

         10  look at them, I give you one example that nobody

         11  really touched upon.  The economic consequences that

         12  we get, plus, of course, the killing of the kids,

         13  the most important, but then also another thing is

         14  that we have incidents that has occurred because of

         15  the toy gun in different airports.  We have had at

         16  least twice in Los Angeles International Airport,

         17  once in San Jose International Airport, and one at

         18  least that I'm aware of in North Carolina Charlotte,

         19  North Carolina, which happened during the

         20  Thanksgiving, you know, time, which is very busy and

         21  because of a toy gun, which a six year- old boy was

         22  carrying and was in a suitcase, they find it, they

         23  thought it was a real gun, that caused at least 100

         24  flights to be, you know, delayed, and that costs

         25  lots of, you know, economically cost people.  Also

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  economic wise when the police officer shoot a kid,

          3  usually they have been sued and also they have lots

          4  of economic impact.  And when they, also they would

          5  rob the bank with this toy guns.

          6                 I want to also say here that these

          7  are only a few incidents, as I said by looking at

          8  the fact sheet you can see much more.

          9                 Although recently various measures

         10  have been taken in certain states to make toy

         11  weapons look less realistic as we were discussing

         12  before, such as prohibiting the manufacturing of

         13  realistic looking, like black and gray toy weapon,

         14  and allowing only certain colors to be used.

         15  However, despite these measures, spraying or

         16  coloring that we mention here that everybody was

         17  talking about the toy guns, can make these toy look

         18  real.

         19                 And as example it is very important

         20  to say, it was very recent, a few months ago in

         21  California.  In Carson, California, a sheriff deputy

         22  shot and wounded a man who had a toy gun that looked

         23  real, even though the toy gun when they look at it

         24  had orange tip.  So that does not even keep our kids

         25  safe or anybody safe.
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          2                 Another very important issue that I

          3  want to touch here is another hand, amazingly I saw

          4  an article published in 1999 by King 5, reported

          5  that a gun manufacturer had recently decided to make

          6  real guns that looked like toys.  These real guns

          7  were to be colored bright pink, blue, green or

          8  orange.  So what about that?  How can you, you know,

          9  touch that thing?

         10                 Furthermore, consumers in this

         11  country expect that the product that are sold for

         12  children would be intended for children and would

         13  not cause them harm.  Allowing the continuation of

         14  manufacturing of these kind of dangerous toys would

         15  make more incidents as we mentioned before.

         16                 Even more so, allowing children to

         17  play with such a seemingly harmless toy gives

         18  children a mixed message.  On one hand, we are

         19  teaching children the value of nonviolence, and on

         20  the other hand we send them the message that weapons

         21  can be used as toys and for fun.  But weapons are a

         22  symbol of control and power.  Allowing children to

         23  play with an imitation of a gun promotes violence

         24  and aggressiveness in children's game, and this had

         25  been proven.  This is not something that I come up
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          2  with. There's lots of information, lots of

          3  researches where psychologist have done and shown

          4  the kids who have been either playing games, which

          5  is violent or being in violent places they will

          6  become violent.

          7                 By allowing children to play with toy

          8  guns we reduce the effect and negative implication

          9  of the real guns.  We will say guns are not toys.

         10  Guns are for killing and toys are for playing;

         11  combination of these two is deadly.

         12                 For the sake of our children and

         13  starting to create a violence free society, give the

         14  children an instrument of construction and life, not

         15  an instrument of destruction and death.

         16                 And I want to thank you for giving me

         17  the time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

         19  much, Doctor, for coming and your patience.

         20                 I'm going to ask Mr. Adams if he can

         21  wait just a moment because I know you have a time

         22  constraint, and Council Member Weprin has a question

         23  that he wanted to ask of you.

         24                 And I also wanted to take just a

         25  moment to acknowledge that our colleague, Robert
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          2  Jackson from Manhattan has joined us.  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Doctor, I

          4  want to thank you very much for coming in all the

          5  way from Los Angeles, California.  And I want to

          6  praise the work you've taken in this area and the

          7  outstanding public service that you're doing.  And

          8  pointing out the issue which we hadn't pointed out

          9  before, although the police officer did point out

         10  the case of people making real guns look like toy

         11  guns for that mistaken identity, but the point

         12  you're making about the incidents of deaths

         13  involving children mistaking real guns for toy guns.

         14    If toy guns were not as common and were not as

         15  accessible to small children, that mistake would

         16  never have happened, and clearly if we save one life

         17  by this legislation, I believe we're doing our job.

         18                 I just want to ask you to comment on

         19  one thing that happened in the last day or two, a

         20  development in the City of New York, and I think

         21  we're going to hear from them shortly.

         22                 The Libertarian Party, which is a

         23  party that was on the ballot in the last election

         24  because it protect to this proposed legislation that

         25  Council Member Vann and myself have introduced, have
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          2  decided, announced on TV and other places that they

          3  are going to be distributing toy guns to school

          4  children after school, and they may be doing it

          5  right now as we speak. And the first place that

          6  they're doing it happens to be a minority

          7  neighborhood, not too far from where one of the

          8  incidents had occurred, involving a mistaken

          9  identity and a toy gun.

         10                 Do you have any position on what the

         11  Libertarian Party is doing to show their opposition

         12  to this legislation?

         13                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  I'm very sorry to hear

         14  that, and I really don't know this group, and I'm

         15  very sorry to hear that.

         16                 What we can do to raise this

         17  awareness to everybody.  As a matter of fact, I

         18  brought -- maybe I can show you.  The parents are

         19  very much for the banning of the toy gun and not

         20  having a toy gun.  All these things you see here is

         21  just a part.  Each page have about 20, you know,

         22  signature of people with name and addresses.  It's

         23  from California if it can help you.  But we can, you

         24  know, raise awareness among parents and make sure

         25  that they would be behind this legislation.  Because
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          2  if somebody cares for their kids, when they see the

          3  fact sheet I give you, sometimes some of the parents

          4  would say the same thing that I hear today, and they

          5  say, okay, you know, that's true that the guns may

          6  be causing this problem, but it's not true.  We did

          7  play with it, it didn't happen, but when you give

          8  them that fact sheet, honestly they change their

          9  mind like this.  I've seen so many parents change

         10  their mind very quickly when they see it because

         11  they don't want their kids to be killed just for a

         12  little toy gun.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  You're welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         17  Vann?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yeah, thank

         19  you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 I'm compelled to say a couple of

         21  words because the distance that you traveled and the

         22  excellent fact sheet that your organization had

         23  prepared.

         24                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  I mean, I have
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          2  to commend you and to thank you for coming.  Are you

          3   -- what is your preparation?  Are you a researcher?

          4                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Yes, I'm a researcher.

          5    I'm a doctor in epidemiology and public health --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  All right.

          7                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  -- Which is preventive

          8  medicine.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Right.

         10                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  And as I said, we

         11  consider violence, and gun violence especially in

         12  this country social epidemic disease.  So we look at

         13  it as a disease rather than just like a violence

         14  that we use to call it, you know, criminal justice.

         15  That's why, you know, I prepare all this thing, and

         16  it's very difficult because usually, as I was

         17  listening also, the police -- at least in

         18  California, I've contact them many times, they don't

         19  have any statistic ready to give us to say this many

         20  crimes or whatever happen with toys.  And so we have

         21  to go research, and lexius nexus, and get a

         22  newspaper, and other things.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Right.

         24                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Yeah.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  My question
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          2  then, of one of the previous person that gave

          3  testimony indicated that playing with guns basically

          4  helped with the healthy development of children,

          5  essentially what he said.  What would be your

          6  response to that?

          7                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Not at all.  I'm

          8  totally opposite to what he was saying.  As a matter

          9  of fact, I was shock when I was hearing that because

         10  children are what they play.  And playtime and

         11  playing should be educational for them, and then

         12  what they learn during -- it's very essential.

         13  Playing for the kids is very essential, that's why

         14  if we teach them or give them the thing that is not

         15  right, like a toy gun, like violence video game

         16  you're reeling their life for future, that's for

         17  sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.

         19  Thank you, I'm going to make sure that every member

         20  of the Council gets this sheet.  I think it's a

         21  very, very important document you've pulled

         22  together.

         23                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Thank you.  And I have

         24  my website underneath the testimony on the other

         25  one.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yes.

          3                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  You can go in and see

          4  more.

          5                 One thing that we didn't touch up

          6  here, although it may not be part of, you know, this

          7  hearing, you know, we have collected more than

          8  20,000 toy gun last eight years from different

          9  children.  When we educate them, by education, it's

         10  not we don't tell them to give us your toy gun.  We

         11  educate them and say why we have to do that, and if

         12  they're agreeing with us, we collected these thing,

         13  and lots of artist, many artist have made beautiful

         14  pieces of art from collected toy gun, which have

         15  anti violence message in it which you can find in

         16  website.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.

         18                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  And I advise you to

         19  see that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.

         21  I'll save the City money.  I won't duplicate this,

         22  I'll just give them the website.

         23                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Okay, that's better.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you again,

         25  very much, Doctor.
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          2                 DR. KIOUMEHR:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Have a safe trip.

          4                 Mr. Adams?

          5                 MR. ADAMS:  I'm going to be very

          6  brief.  I didn't travel as far as California, but I

          7  traveled by Bed Stuy, how's that?

          8                 I want to commend both Councilman

          9  Weprin and Councilman Vann on moving ahead on this

         10  issue.

         11                 Often when we talk about the toy gun

         12  issue, we discuss it in a very sterilized

         13  environment, and we've missed some of the facts of

         14  the every day police responding to this issue of toy

         15  gun.  And I just want to correct and just food for

         16  thought.

         17                 One, it is illegal to purchase spray

         18  paint by young adults; it is not illegal to be in

         19  possession of that. True, paint won't stick to this,

         20  but what is used here is primer. The young children

         21  that showed me how to spray paint some of the guns I

         22  purchased with them, the young kids showed me what

         23  to use. When I first tried to paint a gun with spray

         24  paint it didn't stick.  They told me I had to buy

         25  black primer, and this is what's used on this as
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          2  black primer.  Black primer will stick to any

          3  product and I challenge anyone that say that black

          4  primer won't stick to their product.

          5                 This gun cannot be detected in

          6  airports going through any airport metal detector.

          7  Once you obtain this gun and you on the airplane,

          8  you have the ability to fool a pilot, you have the

          9  ability to fool any air marshal, you have the

         10  ability to fool anyone to take control of that

         11  plane.  Toy guns are not only used when one

         12  participate in a crime where they are apprehended.

         13                 We just had a robbery yesterday in

         14  Brooklyn, on Flatbush Avenue.  Two armed bank

         15  employees were robbed for $74,000.  An individual

         16  used a gun to take their guns.  It still isn't clear

         17  if they used a real gun or a toy gun.  So when one

         18  talks about the use of a toy gun, and gives you

         19  stats on how many people are apprehended, in

         20  actuality a countless number of people who

         21  participate in crime, unlike Starsky and Hutch,

         22  they're not caught at the end of the 30- minute

         23  program.  The reality, many criminals use toy guns

         24  to participate in illegal behavior and they're never

         25  caught and they continue to participate in that
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          2  behavior.

          3                 I just want to give you one

          4  presentation to show you -- to get our mind off the

          5  sterilizing and the clean environment that we

          6  discuss this.

          7                 Detective Lamont (phonetic), would

          8  you step up here?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Mr. Adams, would

         10  you stay over there?

         11                 MR. ADAMS:  When we get a call, what

         12  9- 1- 1 puts a call over the service, they say that

         13  there's a call for police service, there's a call

         14  for police service, the police officer is only

         15  responding to that radio run.  That radio run,

         16  earlier in the day he could have been a shootout,

         17  the day before he could have heard his partner got

         18  shot or whatever.  He's responding to the call over

         19  the service of man with a gun, that's all he's

         20  responding to.  When he comes around the corner,

         21  when he comes around the building, I'm not concerned

         22  with the color of the gun. I'm concerned with the

         23  shape of the object.

         24                 Too many cases where we make

         25  apprehension where a person has taken a toy gun or
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          2  real gun and painted it pink because he wants to

          3  fool cops.  So when anyone tells you that colors

          4  doesn't matter, we have criminals who paint the tip

          5  of their guns orange.  Orange.  Criminals are not

          6  dumb, they're slick, they're smart, they're educated

          7  in the street of high education of the slums of our

          8  community.  When they respond to a job, and a police

          9  officer respond to a job, two young people playing,

         10  all they see is this.  This is all a police officer

         11  needs to shoot someone.  This is all he needs.

         12  Immediate, deadly physical force.  If two people are

         13  playing with a gun, this is enough to shoot, no

         14  matter what color that gun is.  A police officer is

         15  not factoring the thought process that many

         16  manufactures want you to believe, that well, if it's

         17  silver, if it's orange, if it's gray.  No, if it's

         18  shaped like a gun, and it's pointed in a menacing

         19  position, in any position at all, that is enough to

         20  take someone's life.  Not only -- thanks a lot,

         21  Lamont.

         22                 Not only do innocent people paint

         23  guns, our children paint guns.  But one step further

         24  that many people are missing.  When a bad guy is

         25  shot at, a high number of rounds that are discharged
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          2  by any gun does not hit the intended target, where

          3  do those bullets go?  Bullets don't have heat-

          4  seeking indicators on them to only say take the life

          5  of bad guys.  If a police officer with an automatic

          6  weapon, with 15 rounds in his clip, shoots 15 of

          7  those rounds -- as in the case of Amadou Diallo, 40

          8  some shots was discharged.  Only a small percentage

          9  hit Amadou Diallo, those other rounds go out to and

         10  hit an object that stops it.  In too many cases that

         11  object is human flesh.

         12                 So the danger is not only the fool

         13  that paints a gun to commit a crime, the danger is

         14  the innocent person that wants to duplicate, not

         15  cowboys and Indians because they're no longer on TV.

         16                 They want to duplicate the gangster

         17  raps that I see, and gangster rapers* don't carry

         18  pink guns, they carry colored guns that are black.

         19  Those are the heroes that children are duplicating

         20  today.

         21                 So to be removed from the true

         22  environment of what's taking place on our streets,

         23  and not willing enough to make laws that are

         24  applicable to save the lives, I think, is foolish.

         25  I think that just as we in law enforcement must
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          2  catch up to how behavior patterns are conducted, our

          3  toy industry also have to do so.  There's no room in

          4  America's society, post- 9/11, there's no room in

          5  the culture of violence, there's no room in the

          6  various young people that are using toy guns to play

          7  or hurt each other, there's no room for real- shaped

          8  toy guns.  It takes lives.  It creates crime.  It

          9  hurts dangerous people; it hurts innocent people.

         10  If we don't make a change, then you're going to have

         11  countless numbers of other cases where there are

         12  near misses, countless number of crimes that are

         13  carried out, and countless number of innocent people

         14  that could become the victim of violence, and that's

         15  real, that's not the sterilized environment, that's

         16  the real environment that we participate in every

         17  day as law enforcement people.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         20  Vann?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yeah.  Thank

         22  you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 Let me say, Lieutenant Adams, your

         24  testimony was extraordinary.  And for the record I

         25  want everyone to know that I got involved in this
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          2  issue really because you brought it to my attention

          3  when a young man was killed in my district that I

          4  represent in August.  It's one of those on the fact

          5  sheet actually, and you and some black lawyers came

          6  to the press conference.  We talked after that, and

          7  you enlightened me more about this issue, that's

          8  when I then took up that issue with Councilmen

          9  Weprin, and this legislation was introduced.

         10                 But more than that, I just want to

         11  commend you for the man that you are.  I remember

         12  you as a young fellow when Reverence Doytch

         13  (phonetic) and I was out there trying to make some

         14  changes in our community.  I want to commend you for

         15  the type of policeman that you are, and you don't

         16  know -- you probably don't fully appreciate the

         17  impact that you make on young people in our

         18  community when they see you stand up and take the

         19  positions, even sometimes against those that you are

         20  a part of because you want to take the right

         21  decision, what's just, and take the consequences.

         22  It's immeasurable the impact that you've had, and

         23  the respect that you have gotten from them, and I

         24  want you to know that you have my ultimate respect

         25  as well.
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          2                 MR. ADAMS:  Thank you.  Thank you,

          3  Councilman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

          5  Weprin?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yeah.

          7  Lieutenant Adams, I wanted also to praise your

          8  leadership in this area as well as many other areas.

          9    And I want you to know that it's not a black

         10  issue, it's not a Hispanic issue, it's not a white

         11  issue, it's an issue for everybody in our City, it's

         12  an issue for all the people.  And I'm just proud to

         13  say that I enjoyed working with you on this issue,

         14  and I hope to continue to work with you because I

         15  think you're taking a position that will benefit all

         16  the children of our City, and all the citizens of

         17  our City.  So thank you very much for your

         18  leadership.

         19                 MR. ADAMS:  Yeah.  And I would just

         20  like to point out and I agree with you about the

         21  issue of toy guns, it's not an issue of ethnicity

         22  because when as I stated, when a police officer

         23  respond to a call of a 9- 1- 1 man with a gun,

         24  that's the highest level of police alertness, and

         25  you focus on the shape of that gun because of our
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          2  training.  The worse thing a police officer could do

          3  is to stop his level of enforcement based on a color

          4  of any object, that is the worse training.  I will

          5  do all I can to have a police officer removed from

          6  police service, that stop taking police action

          7  because of a color of an object.  That is the wrong

          8  type of policing.

          9                 Manufactures need to marry their

         10  policies with what's taking place on the street

         11  every day in law enforcement and they'll have a

         12  better understanding of that, but my actions are not

         13  my actions alone.  It is the committed members of

         14  100 blacks in law enforcement.  I am merely their

         15  mouthpiece to carry out a policy that they all

         16  ensure in making sure our streets are safe.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Well, thank

         18  the other 99 members for me as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

         20                 I know that Council Member Jackson

         21  has a comment.           I also wanted to thank you

         22  for your remarks, although I'm not giving you a

         23  standing ovation, I just -- my back is killing me so

         24  I'm standing up for a minute, but it's always --

         25  he'll stand up for you.  Thank you.  It's always
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          2  good to have you here, Eric.

          3                 Council Member Jackson?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          5                 Mr. Adams, thank you for coming and

          6  testifying on behalf of the 100 blacks in law

          7  enforcement.

          8                 One of the most recent incidents of a

          9  youth being killed by NYPD happened in my district,

         10  148th Street in Broadway. It so happened that the

         11  weapon that allegedly the youth had was a BB gun,

         12  and in my lay opinion, and I'm not in law

         13  enforcement, a BB gun is not a toy gun, that is to

         14  shoot BB's and pellets out of is my understanding.

         15  But I do appreciate everything that you're doing in

         16  order to bring light to this particular issue and

         17  other issues in which you stand up for.

         18                 My question is this, considering that

         19  so many guns, toy guns that are made to look real,

         20  are there any type of toy guns that you or your

         21  organization that you represent would recommend to

         22  manufacturers?  Has someone communicated to the

         23  manufacturers that these are the type of toy guns if

         24  you're going to, you know, make any, that we

         25  recommend?  Has that ever been made to the toy
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          2  manufacturers?

          3                 MR. ADAMS:  No, and that's probably

          4  the discussion we had with some of the toy

          5  manufacturers here today because I believe the

          6  industry desire is to operate in conformity with the

          7  law and with law enforcement and with public safety.

          8    And we're hoping that some of the dialogue that

          9  comes out today is we can have those discussions.

         10  I'm strongly against young people playing with any

         11  gun at all.  I don't believe that you need an

         12  elementary course to graduate to criminal behavior

         13  by practicing with toy guns.  I don't believe that

         14  one has to learn to play cops and robbers at an

         15  early age.  There must be a cop and there must be a

         16  robber.  Is that robber going to grow up to be a

         17  robber one day?

         18                 So I'm concerned that our music

         19  industry has a proliferation of violence, has a

         20  proliferation of romanticism with guns.  Our

         21  children, just like they duplicate karate moves in

         22  karate pictures, they go out and duplicate the

         23  behavior of their heroes.  Their heroes nowadays are

         24  not John Wayne.  They are those who look like them,

         25  come from their community, and they have a fixation
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          2  with guns.  So I don't believe in children playing

          3  with guns.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So it's also

          5  an education process for our community in the City

          6  of New York, all over the country, to educate

          7  children to move away from the violence type of

          8  situations in playing with guns and knives, and

          9  playing like we're killing each other and stabbing

         10  each other, and all of these videos that entice, you

         11  know, cutting off people's heads and arms and all of

         12  that type of craziness.  Is that correct?

         13                 MR. ADAMS:  I can't tell you how many

         14  times we've made an arrest for a violent incident,

         15  and the young person had a CD in his pocket that

         16  duplicated the behavior of that violent incident,

         17  and how many times we conducted search warrants and

         18  found violent indicators within the environment.

         19  And all sociologist of agreed that the countless

         20  number of television programs, violence that is fed

         21  to our children from the time they wake up and eat

         22  their morning cereal, till the time they can say

         23  goodnight, it has an impact on the actual behavior

         24  that our young people are displaying.  I don't

         25  believe the banning of toy guns in any way will hurt
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          2  the industry enough that we should not move ahead;

          3  it will help young people move away from the actions

          4  of violence, and maybe this is just the first step

          5  of identifying some of those items and issues that

          6  make our children participate in a very violent

          7  behavior.

          8                 We see the result of that violence.

          9  Many people may turn the pages of newspapers, but

         10  every day we see the results of failing programs of

         11  children embracing violence, and we see it, and

         12  there's a perfect storm brewing.  We see the

         13  inclement weather before others do, and that's why

         14  we embrace this concept of banning toy guns and we

         15  applaud both Councilmen Weprin and Vann for bringing

         16  it to the forefront of this level.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now the toy

         18  gun that you displayed, that one there, can I see

         19  that, if you don't mind. That is, what type of gun

         20  does that look like?

         21                 MR. ADAMS:  And that's an excellent

         22  question because that's what makes you respond even

         23  more.  That looks like something of the level of an

         24  Uzi, or it's definitely at the level of an automatic

         25  weapon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And do they

          3  look, the real ones, are they about -- do they have

          4  some this size --

          5                 MR. ADAMS:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- That

          7  looks like this?

          8                 MR. ADAMS:  Yes.  And what do -- you

          9  see on the bottom, that's clip that's on the bottom

         10  of the gun to give it a more, a real look.  It

         11  doesn't come of that gun, but to give it a more real

         12  looking image.  And again, as was indicated, the

         13  paint on that gun, if you look closely at the paint

         14  on that gun, that paint is primer.  Primer is made

         15  to stick to metal.  I believe that says primer on

         16  it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yeah.

         18                 MR. ADAMS:  Or flat black, ultra.

         19  Right.  That's the goal of it to stick to difficult

         20  objects.  When I first spray painted the gun, the

         21  kids told me no, you have to use primer. They showed

         22  me where to purchase the paint and how to use the

         23  paint.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, so

         25  you're saying that when they run upon a situation
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          2  where there's an alarm, you know, a suspect or a man

          3  with a gun, they're responding to that radio call as

          4  you indicated, and they don't know if it's real or

          5  if it's fake, they have to assume that it's real.

          6                 MR. ADAMS:  Right.  Remove ourselves

          7  from the Council chamber.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

          9                 MR. ADAMS:  Put ourselves in the blue

         10  and white R&P, hearing, coming over the radio, man

         11  with a gun.  That's all you hear.  Hit the sirens,

         12  the lights and sirens, running up four or five

         13  flights of stairs, a dark area, you're scared

         14  already because you know around that corner is

         15  something that could take the life of someone.  And

         16  as much as we want to romanticize it, there's not

         17  one person in a blue uniform that don't want to go

         18  home every night, and far too often sometimes the

         19  actions may be overly aggressive, but the bottom

         20  line is if we remove the element that created that

         21  call, that man with a gun call, we will make the

         22  community safer and we can have the issue of public

         23  safety.

         24                 But it's a real issue.  I've went on

         25  gun runs where a robbery took place and a person had
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          2  a toy gun, and I was scared as hell.  And if anyone

          3  believes that I was concerned about a silver gun or

          4  the color of the gun or a pink gun, that's not a

          5  reality.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We have one other

          8  round of witnesses or people that want to testify,

          9  though I'm not sure they're here, and I said we were

         10  going to be finished at 3:15, so we're going to be

         11  finished fairly soon.  I appreciate everyone --

         12  thank you -- I appreciate everyone's patience.

         13                 So is Gary Snyder here?

         14                 No, sir, I just simply asked the

         15  question.

         16                 MR. DOBRIAN:  He left.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Is Mr. Dobrian

         18  here?

         19                 MR. DOBRIAN:  That's me, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  That's you.  Well,

         21  please come to the witness table.

         22                 And is Mr. Lesczynski here?

         23                 MR. DOBRIAN:  He is not here, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Okay.

         25                 Sir, would you be kind enough to
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          2  state your name for the record?

          3                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.  My name is

          4  Joseph Dobrian.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  You need to push

          6  the button in, sir.

          7                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I'm sorry.  My name is

          8  Joseph Dobrian, D- o- b- r- i- a- n.  I was the

          9  libertarian candidate for congress in the eighth

         10  district in the last election, and I'm here

         11  representing the Manhattan Libertarian Party.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  In Congress?

         13                 MR. DOBRIAN:  U.S. House of

         14  Representatives.

         15                 Councilors, banning toys is frivolous

         16  legislation because it won't save one life or

         17  prevent one crime because a criminal will find

         18  countless other ways to replicate a fake gun.

         19  Despite the current hysteria, there is no epidemic

         20  of children being shot brandishing a squirt gun.

         21                 This bill, in effect, punishes or

         22  proposes to punish innocent children because of the

         23  possibility, the theoretical possibility that a few

         24  people might misuse their toys.  We are talking

         25  about outlawing harmless objects that could
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          2  theoretically be made to look like a real gun.  It

          3  would make as much sense to outlaw cakes of soaps,

          4  or blocks of wood, or fingers.  Unfortunately, this

          5  proposed legislation is popular with the politically

          6  correct because it has the delightful side effect of

          7  sending a message to our children.  The message the

          8  our politically correct friends apparently want to

          9  send is that guns in an of themselves are bad

         10  things; therefore, children must be told that even

         11  toy ones are bad because in real life only solders

         12  and policemen should ever be allowed to handle guns.

         13                 Councilor Vann, I was very happy that

         14  you brought up the question of whether or not

         15  playing with toy guns is good for a child's

         16  development, and I'd like to respond to that.

         17                 I don't accept the premise that

         18  society would be better off or that children would

         19  grow up to be better adults if children did not play

         20  with toy weapons.  On the contrary, I think that

         21  playing guns, as we used to call it, is a good

         22  thing.  It's a very good thing, and I'll tell you

         23  why.

         24                 Playing guns is one of the most

         25  constructive, developmental and above all
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          2  educational activities that I know of that a child

          3  could engage in.  While the object of the game is to

          4  pretend to kill each other, the killing itself gets

          5  a little old after a while unless there is story

          6  line developed around it. That's why kids create a

          7  context of cowboys and Indians or World War II or

          8  space warriors.  As he strives to perfect his role

          9  as a cowboy, a soldier, or an adventurer, your child

         10  learns history and technology.  As he and his

         11  playmates build forts and devise battle plans, he

         12  learns the rudiments of military science,

         13  engineering, cartography, shipbuilding, geography

         14  and countless other disciplines, even medicine and

         15  first aid since the relative severity of theoretical

         16  wounds is an important factor in playing guns.

         17                 Now, ladies and gentlemen, because I

         18  played with toy guns, by the time I was eight years

         19  old, I could locate on a map the stomping grounds of

         20  virtually every Indian tribe in North America.  I

         21  could name the major chiefs.  I could tell you the

         22  names of dozens of Western outlaws and peace

         23  officers and give accounts of their exploits.  I

         24  could name the kings and queens of England in

         25  chronological order, and I knew facts about hundreds
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          2  of major battles from antiquity to modern times all

          3  because I played guns.

          4                 Now other children in my neighborhood

          5  became expert in military technology or military

          6  strategy and tactics. Others, studied criminology

          7  and detection.  When we got tired of shooting each

          8  other, we would often have impromptu teach- ins,

          9  where we would sit around and share this incredible

         10  wealth of interdisciplinary information.  This would

         11  not have happened if we had not been allowed to play

         12  with guns, toy guns that is.

         13                 Playing guns, as we called it,

         14  encourages children to learn, to read, to question,

         15  to discuss.  The demonization of an object, such as

         16  a toy gun, leads only to ignorance, to passivity, to

         17  mindless submission to authority.  Now if that's

         18  what you want, and I suspect that that is what some

         19  lawmakers want, then outlawing guns will certainly

         20  suit the purpose.  And this senseless law is just

         21  another social price of the encroaching nanny state.

         22    It restricts parental choice by dictating how they

         23  can raise their children, and it turns neighbors

         24  into snoops.

         25                 The Libertarian Party's opposition is
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          2  all about the freedom of parents to choose the toys

          3  they wish to furnish for their children.

          4                 Let's stop trying to blame and ban

          5  inanimate objects and let's allow peaceful people to

          6  live their lives free of your silly, unnecessary,

          7  intrusive, and destructive laws.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, I have a

         10  couple of questions.  I'm sure some others do, but

         11  just because you were talking about cowboys and

         12  Indians, you know, I always wondered who was the

         13  good guy and the bad guy in that?

         14                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Well, I was usually Doc

         15  Holiday, who operated on both sides of the law.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  You said that when

         17  you, by way of introduction, you said that you were

         18  the Libertarian's Party candidate for congress,

         19  right?

         20                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir, last fall.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Oh, in the last

         22  election.

         23                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  The same year that

         25  we had a gubernatorial election?

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Does your party

          4  now have a ballot line?

          5                 MR. DOBRIAN:  No, sir, we haven't.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  What happened?

          7            MR. DOBRIAN:  Well, we -- according to

          8  state law needed 50,000 votes in the gubernatorial

          9  race to achieve ballot status, as every third party

         10  does.  We feel that that's an onerous requirement.

         11  It cuts out a good many smaller parties that have a

         12  story to tell and a message to bring to the people.

         13  There were, I think, a good seven or eight parties

         14  that were on the ballot, including, I think, the

         15  Liberal Party, which didn't achieve that 50,000.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  So some people

         17  could interpret that to mean that there weren't

         18  enough people in the State of New York that felt

         19  that your party was relevant in terms of their point

         20  of view to keep you on the ballot.

         21                 MR. DOBRIAN:  No, I'd say it's we

         22  lack the funds and the bar has been set artificially

         23  high to keep smaller parties like us off the ballot

         24  and to keep us from delivering our message.  That

         25  would be my take on it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  That's one point

          3  of view.  But so in order for you guys to run, you

          4  have to go back out to the public.  Is that it?

          5                 MR. DOBRIAN:  As I did, sir, last

          6  summer, I was out there every day for the whole six

          7  weeks of the petitioning process and singlehandedly

          8  I collected 3,000 signatures.  It was a tough

          9  process, a grueling process, I hated every darn

         10  second of it, but we -- the Libertarian Party is

         11  made up of dedicated people like that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I see.

         13                 So you've come to this conclusion

         14  about this through a long thought process?

         15                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I mean, you sat

         17  down with the Board of Directors of the Libertarian

         18  Party and came up with this, or is this your own

         19  thought?

         20                 MR. DOBRIAN:  What I read here was 90

         21  percent my own prepared remarks.  I incorporated a

         22  paragraph of so from Mr. Snyder's and Mr.

         23  Lesczynski's remarks since they had to run along to

         24  the demonstration.  I did, however, supply you all

         25  with the full remarks of myself and Mr. Lescyznski
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          2  and Mr. Snyder.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Do you want to

          4  explain this demonstration that you've referred to

          5  for the record?

          6                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, it's called Toys

          7  for Tots.  And it's a give away of toy guns.  Toy

          8  guns that do not look real.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Where are you

         10  going to do this?

         11                 MR. DOBRIAN:  The address I was given

         12  was Lexington Avenue and 104th Street.  I don't know

         13  every fact about this demonstration because I did

         14  not organize it.  I was -- when Mr. Lesczynski and

         15  Mr. Snyder had to get along to it, I was left to

         16  address you folks.  So I can -- I'll answer that to

         17  the best of my ability.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  What do you think,

         19  did they saddle up or something to get along up

         20  there?

         21                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Well, considering the

         22  traffic in this town that just might be the fastest

         23  way.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  So you wouldn't

         25  have any idea why they happen to choose a public
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          2  school in my district to carry on with this

          3  foolishness?

          4                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Well, I didn't -- I

          5  first of all repudiate your characterization of it

          6  as foolishness, but second of all, I didn't hear

          7  that they had to ask your permission as to where to

          8  hold this demonstration.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I didn't suggest

         10  that they had to ask my permission.  I'm one of the

         11  proudest members of the, let anybody do what they

         12  want, be as stupid as they want, anyplace they want

         13  party.  I'm just asking --

         14                 MR. DOBRIAN:  You could have fooled

         15  me, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  -- If there was a

         17  provocation was the reason that they chose that

         18  particular school, or in fact why -- well, let me

         19  ask you a question.  Do you know these two gentlemen

         20  well?

         21                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, they signed

         23  in and one of them -- now, where do you live?

         24                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I live on the east

         25  side, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Whereabouts?

          3                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Murray Hill.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Murray Hill.  So

          5  you live on East 26th Street.

          6                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  And Mr. Snyder

          8  signed in and says he lives on West 74th Street.

          9                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I believe that's where

         10  he lives, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  And Mr. Lesczynski

         12  signed in and says he lives on East 87th Street.

         13                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Yes, I believe that's

         14   --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Now there has got

         16  to be a couple of public school closer by your house

         17  than it is to go all the way up to 104th Street.

         18  Would you agree?

         19                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I'm sure that's true.

         20  I didn't choose the destination of the event, but I

         21  imagine that 104th Street and Lexington Avenue is

         22  just as good a location as any other.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, but you've

         24  done so much thinking about this, you must have some

         25  thought about why they would pick that particular --
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          2                 MR. DOBRIAN:  No, I didn't pick the

          3  location, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  But what would you

          5  suggest or think --

          6                 MR. DOBRIAN:  What do you find

          7  objectionable about that location, sir?  I guess I

          8  don't understand.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, I'm just

         10  curious as to why, you know, they have gone into a

         11  community that is predominantly non- white --

         12                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Oh, I see what you're

         13  driving at, sir.  I understand.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  -- Which, in fact,

         15  is the majority of this City, and I'm further

         16  concerned that, you know, we have as it turns out

         17  today the regents test.  There seems to be a lot of

         18  discussion about the test that the kids have to take

         19  to move on from one grade to another, and our kids

         20  have -- it's been suggested that our kids aren't

         21  good at passing these tests so they've been studying

         22  hard, and the school has been trying to prepare for

         23  this test, and so now there's this disruption by

         24  this party that in any other light --

         25                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Disruption, sir?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well.

          3                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Are you suggesting that

          4  we are invading class time?  Are we going into the

          5  school during school hours?  I don't think we are,

          6  sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  No, but I don't

          8  think either one of us has to pretend that your

          9  party has not used this as a publicity stunt, and

         10  the problem with that now is that it has so

         11  disrupted the activity of the school that --

         12                 MR. DOBRIAN:  How has it done that,

         13  sir?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Excuse me, sir,

         15  I'm talking. Okay.  So I'll let you know when you

         16  can talk.

         17                 That I know for a fact because my

         18  staff had to spend the morning there talking these

         19  kids through this, that there's a great deal of

         20  anxiety, that the principal has had to respond to

         21  all the media that is there, that, frankly,

         22  otherwise the Libertarian Party probably couldn't

         23  have gotten on Page 19, let along this dialogue.  So

         24  it just -- I'm just struck because I get to think

         25  too on occasion, and I could be wrong, that there's
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          2  a provocation here around this issue because there's

          3  a whole lot of schools with a lot of white folks in

          4  them.  That particular school doesn't have white

          5  kids in it, but somehow in terms of what I've read

          6  that you've said or somebody, one of you all said in

          7  the media, you went there because that was a part of

          8  Park Avenue that probably -- I forget how it was

          9  characterized, but it certainly was that there

         10  wasn't sense in you all being below 96th Street.

         11                 So I'm trying to understand where the

         12  Libertarian Party's philosophy.  Is this sort of

         13  indicative of this or what was the purpose of going

         14  and provoking this situation with young kids?

         15                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Okay, sir.  You've

         16  asked a very long question, and I'm afraid I'm going

         17  to have to answer --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I can do that as

         19  the Chair.

         20                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Oh, I understand.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  And I get to make

         22  sure your answer is short.

         23                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Okay.  But I want to

         24  reach -- I want to touch on every point that you

         25  made if I can remember them all, sir.
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          2                 First of all, I don't think that what

          3  we're doing is a provocation.  I think that this

          4  ridiculous bill was the provocation, and we are

          5  merely responding to silly legislation with a silly

          6  demonstration.

          7                 We intended this as a lighthearted

          8  gesture certainly, not as a provocation.  And I

          9  submit to you, sir, that there may have been a

         10  tremendous overreaction on the part of school

         11  administrators having to, as you say, go into the

         12  school and help the kids cope with this.  I don't

         13  know what they're supposed to have to cope with, but

         14  it's really, I think, just a few people outside on

         15  the corner, demonstrating the way good Americans are

         16  supposed to do for regressive grievances, and

         17  handing out toys.  That really shouldn't traumatize

         18  anybody, sir.

         19                 Now as for the demographic of the

         20  school.  I don't know what percentage of the student

         21  body at that nearby school is white or black, or

         22  brown, or yellow, or whatever shade.  I don't know.

         23  I will take your word for it that it's predominantly

         24  brown and black, but I wonder, sir, why you bring

         25  that point up?  Do you mean to tell me that maybe
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          2  black and brown kids somehow lack the judgment to

          3  deal with toy guns, that maybe white children have?

          4  That sounds racist to me, sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  So in other words,

          6  what you're saying to me is that it's not the

          7  responsibility of people, that, in fact, it was the

          8  media's fault because they elevated your stunt to a

          9  level where the principal, I think, in a responsible

         10  manner and the other people in this school decided

         11  that while you thought that might be silly, it's now

         12  all over the newspapers, and the kids have been

         13  hearing it, the parents have been hearing it, and it

         14  has caused disruption, fear, and anger in the

         15  community.  So in other words, you're not really

         16  going to try to be responsible for your actions

         17  because you just decided it was silly, but somebody

         18  else took it another way.

         19                 MR. DOBRIAN:  No, sir.  I reject and

         20  rebutiate (sic) your assertion that it has led to

         21  fear, and anger, and disruption in that community.

         22  If there has been any disruption, I am sure it has

         23  been caused by politically correct overreactors, who

         24  ring their hands and winge (sic) whenever somebody

         25  mentions toy guns.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

          3  Weprin?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes.

          5                 I believe someone on TV, I think it

          6  was Mr. Lesczynski last night, on Channel 7.  It

          7  said the reason they chose, in particular -- I'm

          8  sorry, Mr. Snyder.  Thank you for correcting me.  I

          9  believe it was the gentleman on TV on Channel 7 last

         10  night said specifically that they purposely chose a

         11  minority neighborhood to distribute the guns because

         12  they felt that underprivileged children would

         13  appreciate toys more than more affluent children.  I

         14  think, I believe that was the basis of his

         15  statement.  Do you agree with that statement?

         16                 MR. DOBRIAN:  It makes sense to me,

         17  sir.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So your

         19  answer is yes.

         20                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I would say so, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         24  Jackson?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good
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          2  evening.  Thank you for coming because this is a

          3  democracy and we want to listen to all points of

          4  view.  And you've come with your view, in which I

          5  think is absolutely ridiculous, and I'll say that to

          6  you, eyeball to eyeball.

          7                 MR. DOBRIAN:  You're entitled to your

          8  opinion, sir.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I

         10  appreciate that.

         11                 And let me ask you a question, if I

         12  may. Considering that your colleagues in the

         13  Libertarian Party are up on wherever street, on

         14  104th Street in Lexington Avenue, handing out toy

         15  guns, and if one of the youth that you're handing

         16  out toy guns to, went and painted it black and was

         17  subsequently killed as a result of that, what would

         18  your reaction be?

         19                 MR. DOBRIAN:  My opinion, sir, is

         20  that if I use a toy gun in the commission of a

         21  felony, representing it as a real gun, then I

         22  deserve everything that comes to me.  I ought to be

         23  punished as though it were a real firearm, and if I

         24  get shot in the process, too darn bad for me, serves

         25  me right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And even if

          3  the child was six, eight, ten years old, and playing

          4  with other little kids with that toy gun, that's

          5  what your reaction would be.

          6                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Sir, that is absurdly

          7  theoretical, and that does not happen.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I'm

          9  asking you what your opinion would be, sir, with

         10  respect to the scenario I just played out to you

         11  because you've said to me --

         12                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I said in the

         13  commission of a felony, sir.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that's

         15  correct.  I heard you loud and clear.  But in my

         16  question I didn't mention anything about the

         17  commission of a crime or a felony.  I asked you a

         18  question about a youth, a child, six, seven, eight,

         19  nine, ten, 11, 12, because that's the age group, and

         20  maybe even more than that that they're going to be

         21  handing these toy guns out to. I'm sure they're not

         22  going to ask the boys and girls that are on the

         23  corner how old are you.  Are you three, are you

         24  five, are you seven, are you 14?  They're just going

         25  to be handing out toy guns, and if, in fact, the
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          2  kids painted it to look real because they want to

          3  emulate playing with real guns, and was subsequently

          4  killed, how would you feel about that and not

          5  commission of a crime, playing with each other?  How

          6  would you feel about it?

          7                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Sir, that is absurdly

          8  theoretical, that doesn't happen.  You might as well

          9  ask me how I would feel if I gave a kid a little

         10  Tootsietoy car and he subsequently swallowed it and

         11  choked to death on it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How would

         13  you feel about that?

         14                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Naturally, I would feel

         15  horrible, but not on that account would I advocate

         16  the banning of Tootsietoys.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

         18                 Now I think you said in your opening

         19  statement that no one has been killed by toy guns.

         20  And we just heard from a woman who just flew in from

         21  California, and she's given countless incidents and

         22  her website and the document that she submitted

         23  where countless number of children, children, have

         24  been killed by toy guns or real guns looking like

         25  toy guns.  Now that told you --
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          2                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Killed by them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's

          4  exactly what you said.

          5                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I have not seen that

          6  evidence, sir. I cannot comment on that.  I find

          7  that very hard to believe.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And let me

          9  just -- let me express to you my opinion.  I think

         10  that you're out of touch with reality, and if you

         11  want to give out toy guns, go and give it out in

         12  your neighborhood.  Don't come in our neighborhood

         13  and give out toy guns.

         14                 MR. DOBRIAN:  What's this your and

         15  our, sir?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yeah.  And I

         17  am saying --

         18                 MR. DOBRIAN:  No, sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- You go

         20  and give it out where you live at.  Okay?

         21                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Don't come

         23  up in the hood and give out toy guns.

         24                 MR. DOBRIAN:  What's this your and

         25  our, sir, aren't we all Americans?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  We are all

          3  Americans, but you don't live up in the ghetto where

          4  we live at.  Okay?  And you go and give it out where

          5  you live at.  Don't come uptown.

          6                 MR. DOBRIAN:  You are the one who is

          7  polarizing, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Don't come

          9  uptown with the bull shit.

         10                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Sir, speak respectfully

         11  to me, if you please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Listen,

         13  don't tell me how to talk to you.  Okay?  If you

         14  don't like it, you pull out a toy gun and squirt me

         15  with it then.

         16                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Well, you know --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay?

         18                 MR. DOBRIAN:  -- If you're going to

         19  scream racism at me here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm not

         21  screaming racism. You go in your neighborhood.  You

         22  don't live uptown.

         23                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I live in New York.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You don't

         25  live uptown, young man.
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          2                 MR. DOBRIAN:  I live in New York,

          3  sir.                          CHAIRPERSON REED:

          4  Council Member Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You don't

          6  live uptown.

          7                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Stop shouting me down,

          8  sir.  I live in New York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         10  Jackson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You don't

         12  live in my neighborhood, I know that.

         13                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Sir, I live in New York

         14   --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         16  Jackson.

         17                 MR. DOBRIAN:  -- And this bill

         18  proposes to cover all of New York, not just your

         19  neighborhood as you well know, sir.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You don't

         21  live uptown, young man.  You take that --

         22                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Call me sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Young man,

         24  if you don't like it, leave.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Chairman, I'd
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          2  like to be recognized.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Vann.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yeah.  Thank

          6  you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 I choose not to dignify this

          8  gentleman in any way, shape, form or fashion.  I

          9  have no question for you, sir.

         10                 But I do want to take this time to

         11  commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your indulgence and

         12  your patience.  And that I want to be on your

         13  Committee.  I like the way you run business. So I'm

         14  going to add Consumer Affairs to my choices next

         15  time around.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, you did an

         17  excellent job.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well, thank you

         19  very much for that.  And, you know, I think in

         20  ending, you know we do have to be careful about what

         21  we say and how we say it.  And in this country, yes,

         22  we are all entitled to our opinion, but we also need

         23  to be responsible for that opinion.  I know as

         24  elected officials we're also often times called to

         25  task because of language that we use, and situations
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          2  that we provoke because people will say, well, I

          3  heard a Council Member say that.  And so I think

          4  that when you represent parties and positions and

          5  make those public, you can't make a statement and

          6  then try to disown any consequence of that

          7  statement.

          8                 MR. DOBRIAN:  Have I done so, sir?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Sir, I didn't call

         10  on you.

         11                 And I think that it's important for

         12  us, as adults, to recognize this and not try to ease

         13  and skate and twist something around.  When you see

         14  what it is, we know what it is. And I would just

         15  caution everybody, I appreciate that there are

         16  several sides to this.  And I will be honest with

         17  you and tell you that I'm concerned to some extent

         18  about this legislature, but it is difficult, if not

         19  impossible, to take the picture of young people

         20  laying on the ground with a gunshot, or to picture

         21  the terror in a cops eyes trying to figure out what

         22  he or she is supposed to do in that situation.

         23                 It was just on last Monday.  It's not

         24  even been three or four days that many of us stood

         25  on Wheeler Avenue in the Bronx, to dedicate a street
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          2  to a very innocent young man.  But we don't have to

          3  recite all of what happened there.  The City was

          4  traumatized by that, and we're saddened any time we

          5  see loss of a child's life, and as adults, I think

          6  we have a responsibility, not only as parents, but

          7  as adults in this City to do everything we can to

          8  protect our youth and to teach them well.

          9                 So thank you very much for coming to

         10  this hearing. We will be having a second hearing to

         11  this prior to voting on it.

         12                 Thank you.  This meeting is

         13  adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 3:55 p.m.)

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            135

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EILEEN ROMAINE, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 6th day of February 2003.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          EILEEN ROMAINE

         25

                                                            136

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, EILEEN ROMAINE, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              EILEEN ROMAINE

         23

         24

         25

